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TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

2

COMMITTEE ON BUDGET AND FINANCE

3

COUNCIL OF THE COUNTY OF MAUI

4

MEETING MINUTES

5

FEBRUARY 27, 2001

6
7

CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning, everyone. The

8 Council's Committee on Budget and Finance will now come to
9 order.
10

Let the record show present this morning are

11 committee members Mr. Arakawa, Mr. Carroll, Ms. Johnson,
12 Mr. Molina, Mr. Nishiki. Excused is Ms. Tavares, Mr.
13 Kawano and Mr. Kane.
14

Members, this morning thank you very much for

15 indulging the Chair's request to start early so that we
16 may conclude our agenda by noon.
17

BF-59:

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET

18

RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PROSECUTING

19

ATTORNEY (SPECIAL NEEDS ADVOCACY PROJECT -

20

$79,666; INCREASE OF 0.5 EQUIVALENT

21

PERSONNEL) (C.C. No. 01-49)

22

CHAIR HOKAMA: This morning first item before

23 you is item number 59, an amendment to the fiscal year
24 2001 budget relating to the Department of the Prosecuting
25 Attorney. And in particular members this is regarding the

4
1 Special Needs Advocacy Project of approximately $80,000.00
2 and a increase of a .5 equivalent personnel count.
3

So at this time I will turn it over to the

4 Administration for a presentation and let the record show
5 that Mr. Kawano has joined the committee. Thank you.
MR. BISSEN: Good morning. We're requesting

6

7 that a half time position currently set aside for our
8 Victim Witness -- one of our Victim Witness counselors be
9 made into a full time position. So we're requesting a
10 half position more.
11

I want to make clear at the outset we are not

12 requesting any more funding or money. If it's not clear
13 from the communication we sent to this body, this position
14 is currently funded through a grant. And that grant is
15 called the Victims of Crime Act grant, or VOCA, and the
16 funds there allow us to now pay this position for a full
17 time instead of a half time. We certainly have the need
18
19

for this.
First of all, this half time position was

20 first created back in 1992 in our office and since that
21 time has been filled as such. We -- I could give you some
22 specific statistics on the number of cases that we've
23 done. For example, I should say, cases that are handled
24 by our Victim Witness staff. The numbers you'll see of
25 cases we handle have gone up, but yet the amount of

1 staffing has gone down.
The Victim Witness Division in our office

2

3 which at the time was made up of six and a half positions
4 and yet they serve the 2,147 victims in our community.
5 That number went up in '93 to 2,377, and as of last
6 calendar year we served 2,922 victims in our community,
7 and yet the amount of counselors had gone from six and a
8 half down to five and a half.
We have had an increase -- we therefore had

9

10 an increase between 1993 and the year 2000, over 20
11 percent increase of the victims that we've served, and
12 it's for that reason that we ask that you allow us to make
13 this position a full time position.
The VOCA grant that will pay for this is

14

15 sufficient funding to pay for this position full time for
16 at least the next three years, and we have absolutely no
17 reason to believe that the VOCA monies will reduce as time
18 goes on. This has been an area that the Federal
19 government has continued to fund in all prosecutor's
20 offices across the country or those who have requested the
21 funding.
22

The trend has been in 1997, during fiscal '96

23

we received $133,000.00 from VOCA, $133.275.00. In '97

24

they increased that to $319,482.00. It's sort of leveled

25

off since then. '98 we got $244,745.00. '99, $224,812.00

1
2

and in the year 2000, $225,022.00.
And again, with those funds that we currently

3 have in the bank now, we can pay for this position for the
4 next three years. And we expect to continue to receive
5 grants in about -- in that ball park 200,000 or so, and
6 that will allow us to continue to pay for this position.
7

And paying for the position or salary is one

8 of the areas that we're allowed to use the money for, and
9 again, by looking at the amount of victim's we've served
10 and the staffing that we've maintained, we think -- well,
11 we can demonstrate the need and we think it makes good
12
13

sense. That's all I have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr.

14 Bissen. As our chief Prosecuting Attorney.
15

Michelle, any additional comments to the

16 committee at this time?
17

MS. YOSHIMURA: No, not at this time.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA: Seeing none, members, any

19 questions or comments for Mr. Bissen's request regarding
20 the .5 position count?
21

Yes, Mr. Nishiki.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Richard, in your

23 January 24th, 2001 letter to the Council Chair in your
24 justification you say, not only have trial deputies adapted
25 to an increase in their own caseload, but have taken on

7
1 appeal writing duties as well as increasing the strain on
2 already overworked staff.
3

What is occurring in your department when you

4 represent this type of letter to us? What are you saying
5 to us? Have you lost cases because you don't do good
6 preparation? What has been the outcome of this type of
7 situation?
8

MR. BISSEN: If you like I could address that

9 now, Mr. Nishiki, or I could address that in the next
10 item. The letter referring to the counselors on the
11 January 16th letter we sent. The January 4th letter has
12 to do with our request for an additional prosecutor. At
13 this time I was only going to address the counselor. I
14 can do both if you like.
15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And that's the reason

16 why I'm asking this question. We can do it next time, but
17 I really would like to have an overall picture. And why I
18 ask this, Mr. Chairman, I don't know how many positions
19 are going to be hit upon us before the budget. I don't
20 know how many positions this County is going to request or
21 this Administration.
22

But, again, I know that we've been very

23 concerned about expanding County government and I think
24 that we need to set some sort of priorities. I mean the
25 numbers are going to come to us to justify whatever they

8
1 need in this County. It is up to this department here or
2 this Council here to determine how efficient each
3 department is working, and so, that's my overall concern.
And that's something that maybe this

4

5 administration would have to ask. I mean I'm sure Richard
6 could give us stats and everything else, but as you can
7

see,

three years down the line if this should end, then is

8 the County then going to pick up the tab for this
9 position, is something that we're going to have to ask.
10 And I don't know, Richard, I mean three years is firm, but
11 where next?
12

So, it's up to you Riki how you're going to

13 deal with it.
14

MR. BISSEN: I can answer some of that.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on, Mr. Bissen, please.

16 I think you bring up good points, Mr. Nishiki. I think
17 this committee that you also can appreciate we'll be
18 taking it step by step in the regular review of the budget
19 submittal we prepared for us for the March 15th deadline.
20

I see this committee continuing to have full

21 discourse of that point you just brought up. But I think
22 for today if we can just limit it to what is on the
23 agenda, the Chair would much appreciate all the members to
24 stay with the agenda. I know that it leads to the bigger
25 questions and the Chair has scheduled, I believe, a lot of

9
1 time in committee for those types of discussion and
2 questioning.
3

So, at this time, Mr. Bissen or Michelle, if

4 you could at least respond to Mr. Nishiki's concern about
5 whether this is a limited term appointment or if a regular
6 permanent position is requested.
7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And also what effect

8 it's having on your prosecution and the ability to serve
9 this area. And what basically this Victim Witness program
10
11

is.
MR. BISSEN: Okay. The Victim Witness

12 Division of our office, which was one of the first in the
13 country to have been created in any prosecutor's office
14 back in, I think, the early 80's. They serve -- they're
15 crisis counselors. They are advocates for victims. They
16 attend hearings with victims and/or survivors. People,
17 for example, homocide families of people murdered. For
18 example, the murder case that we just recently prosecuted
19 over the last five weeks, our counselors attended with the
20 family members from the mainland who were brought over
21 here to testify in the trial and to sit through the trial.
22

We provide referrals for people that need

23 longer term counseling because we do not provide long term
24 counseling. We provide crisis counseling.
25

They are liasons between the Prosecuting

10
1 Attorney who's handling the case and the actual victims or
2 witnesses themselves. We keep them informed. You might
3 imagine we have lots of cases involving tourists, people
4 that are not from here. We keep in contact with them,
5 sometimes long past the case.
6

So, I think any prosecutor will tell you they

7 are very integral role of any prosecutor's office whose
8 funding is primarily from the State, from funding that we
9 receive through the State, and through grants. So they
10 are a self-sustaining body in many ways.
11

In this particular instance we have

12 demonstrated the need by telling the increase. But let me
13 be even more specific. The person that's currently in
14 this position is not only what she has done since she's
15 come on as half time has helped out in the area of
16 domestic violence which we could only commit one counselor
17 to all these years. She's been able to be a half time
18 help to her, and she's impacted that area very, very
19 importantly.
20

She's the support to our counselor at this

21 time. She, because of her, we're able to send a counselor
22 to every family court trial in our system right now. We
23 send them to our arraignments, for incustodies. We send
24 them to plea hearings. She goes out with the other
25 domestic violence counselor to do follow-up on cases,

11
1 which, of course, provides a lot of emotional support to
2 our victims.
3

She -- in 1993 we had 193 victims in the

4 domestic violence cases that we served. In 2000 we had
5 417. That's over 100 percent increase. Yet where our
6 staff is not increased.
7

In addition to that, this half time position,

8 when it becomes, if it becomes full time, she will be
9 assigned to the child sex assault cases and other violent
10 crime cases. We also hope to do more outreach for the
11 outlying areas, such as Hana, Lanai, and Molokai as well,
12 which we're currently unable to do as much as we'd like to
13

do.

14

We also intend for her to assist us with our

15 volunteer project. We use a lot of volunteers in this
16 area, a lot of people willing to help and wanting to help.
17 We need people to help coordinate that, and that's another
18 area we hope this person will help us with if it becomes
19 full time.
20

One example of the kind of help we use with

21 volunteers, is we recruit older teenagers, young adults,
22 who themselves have been victims of sexual assault. We
23 have them mentor our younger abused children that are
24 currently coming through the system. Those are programs
25 that we hope to continue and to expand if this position is

12

1 expanded.
2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are we losing cases

3 because we don't have -4

MR. BISSEN: No. What we do is everyone just

5 has to work hard and we're asking to be able to relieve
6 some of that work.
7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

8

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much,

9 Mr. Nishiki. Next will be Mr. Arakawa.
10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Thank you,

11 Mr. Chairman.
12

Richard, this person that is being in the

13 position right now, the funding for it you said is pretty
14 much locked up for the next two years, or three years you
15 had that already secured.
16

MR. BISSEN: Yes.

17

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Why -- when did that

18 money come in? I mean -19

MR. BISSEN: It comes in every year.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: This is an ongoing

21 program?
22

MR. BISSEN: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Why didn't you submit

24 for this in the regular budget? Why are you doing it now
25 before the regular budget cycle then?

13
MR. BISSEN: Well, this particular person

1

2 that's in there now started in May of 1999 when she first
3 started. She came as a volunteer from Americorp
4

(phonetic) and I don't know if we knew the funding then.

5 Maybe I can ask that specific question, I can't answer,
6 but Lena Lorenzo who's our Victim Witness Coordinator can
7 maybe -8

Can you come forward, Lena? If that's okay

9 with you, Mr. Arakawa.
10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's fine. I'm

11 just trying to understand why it's not part of the regular
12 budget cycle. It should have been done. I don't think we
13 we should not fund the position, I'm just trying to figure
14 out why it's not in the regular budget cycle.
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Can you please identify

16 yourself for the record before answering?
17

MS. LORENZO: My name is Lena Lorenzo and I'm

18 the director for the Victim Witness Assistance Division.
19

Mr. Arakawa, we receive funding from the VOCA

20 every year and their fiscal year start from October to
21 September, and for fiscal year 2000, I believe we got word
22 on the amount of the funding, let's see, early part of -23 fiscal year started in October. So we got the amount, I
24 believe, in September of 2000. And at that time, I don't
25 know where the budget process was at that time. I think

1 it was done.
2

14
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So it was new in the

3 year 2000? You didn't have funding for this before that?
4

MS. LORENZO: We had funding before that.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you should have

6 been able to predict that you were going to get funding
7 for that and planned for it in the budget then. If it was
8 a brand new program, and this is a first time funding,
9 then I can understand not being able to plan for it, which
10 is why I'm trying to ask why it wasn't part of the regular
11 budget cycle.
12

MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Councilman

13 Arakawa, it was recognized in the regular budget as
14 $145,000.00. In September they were notified that they
15 would be getting $225,000.00 and there you would see the
16 increase in the amendment that we had put forth, and also
17 increasing the half time position to a full time position.
18

So at the time we did the budget we have --

19 we knew we were going to get $145,000.00 and we knew how
20 much personnel costs that could cover. Now that we're
21 getting an additional amount, we're asking to increase the
22 half time position to a full time position.
23

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right. You couldn't

24 do it during the regular budget cycle? This has been a
25 yearly allocation, from what I'm understanding. Richard

15
1 has already stated you have a lot of the money in reserve
2 for the next two or three years. It's pretty much locked
3 in there; correct? So wasn't there enough money within,
4 within the grants previously to be able to plan and put
5 this in the regular budget cycle?
6

MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, in fiscal year

7 1999 we asked for an increase of a half position and this
8 was the position that was asked for because of the excess
9 funding. And at that time we knew we could cover the half
10 time position. Since then we got another increase and
11 therefore we can pay for a full time rather than a half
12 time and that's why we're asking for it at this time.
13

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, what you're

14 saying is prior to the additional funding that was put in
15 this year, you didn't have any reserve that you could have
16 boosted up the request for the full time position? You
17 couldn't anticipate that?
18

MS. LORENZO: Oh, we were -- we were also

19 subgranting other agencies in the community, so we were
20 giving the money to them in the area of domestic violence
21 and sex assault.
22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you expended all

23 of the money that you had. You didn't have a reserve.
24
25

MS. LORENZO: No, we didn't have a reserve
then.

16
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But at this time we

1

have a guaranteed two year or three year reserve that we
3 could spend?
4

MS. LORENZO: Until 2002.

5

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Because, Mr.

6 Chairman, you know, a lot of these -- I understand where
7 the Prosecuting Attorney is coming from where we want to
8 increase, if we want to put that on line right now, but
9 we're in the midst of our budgeting cycle. Within two
10 weeks the Mayor's budget should be coming down to us. Two
11 weeks, three weeks maybe. And I'm just wondering why
12 we're trying to get ahead of the Mayor's budgeting cycle
13 when we could put it into the regular budgeting cycle and
14 analyze this in respect to the whole budget.
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand what you're

16 saying, Mr. Arakawa, and, again, it will be a decision of
17 this committee whether to move forward on this request at
18 this time or to wait and make a determination during the
19 regular budget review and deliberations.
20

And so, again, I believe it is at least

21 worthy for Mr. Bissen to present his request to you at
22 this time, and again, we will make a determination as a
23 committee after his presentation whether you want to defer
24 or move forward on this request.
25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If I may ask one more

1 question, Mr. Chairman.

17

2

CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Is this an emergency

4 situation where something has come up as a special need in
5 the last few months that -- or is this just an add on to
6 try and cover existing services that you want to expand
7 on?
MR. BISSEN: The latter. But let me also

8

9 say, as you probably know, with grant monies, what you
10 don't expend you need to return to the funding source.
I want to make it clear that we're not asking

11

12 for money from this body. We're asking for permission.
13 The money is there. The money is from the Federal
14 government. We're not asking the County for one penny.
We're asking permission to use the money that

15

16 we are going to receive anyway, to use it to pay for
17 someone's salary, with your permission. If you say no,
18 then we'll use that money for something else, or we'll
19 give it to other agencies in the community that can use
20
21

it.
Our goal, of course, is not to have to return

22 it to the Federal government after they've been gracious
23 enough to provide it to us. And this is one of the ways
24 we're entitled to use it and we want to use it.
25

If the timing is poor, then that's my fault.

18
1 If the timing is poor. If that's the only reason this is
2 going to be, perhaps not passed, I think what we've tried
3 to do is demonstrate that we can afford the position. It
4 was a recent reallocation to us, and we brought it to the
5 attention of this body as early as I thought we could.
6

If you prefer that we wait, then obviously

7 we'll live by that. But I just need to make it clear
8 we're not asking -- we're not trying to get ahead of the
9 game and try to get money from some other department or
10 other division, because that's not the case. This isn't
11 County dollars.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I understand that

13 very clearly. I'm just in the process of trying to do the
14 analysis for the overall County budget we've had requests
15 from other agencies looking at additional personnel,
16 moving money around, accepting more funds, and try to
17 expend some of those funds.
18

So all I'm trying to do is trying to put

19 things in perspective where it's sort of organized. Now
20 the additional funds that we'll be talking about, that's
21 part of this item right after this, that's over and above
22 your current budget and what was expected?
23

MR. BISSEN: Which was answered.

24

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: These 225,000,

25 125,000, the difference that you --

19

1

MR. BISSEN: $79,000.00.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: $79,000.00, that's

3 over and above what you would normally have expected to
4 receive. So I would assume that that was not budgeted for
5 in this current year budget, but it was an addition. And
6 in trying to understand, you know, as agencies come before
7 us, as the Administration comes before us, what's
8 happening, are we just getting the extra money now and
9 we're trying to spend it all? And how does it fit into
10 the overall perspective of what we should be budgeting for
11 and what we're doing with the extra money that we have
12 that we had not anticipated?
13

So, in my mind all I'm trying to do is get a

14 big picture of what's happening. I believe the position
15 that you're trying to get is very warranted. So, Richard,
16 don't get any ideas that I don't think it's a warranted
17 position. I'm just trying to get back to a perspective as
18 to what we're trying to accomplish.
19

MR. BISSEN: I certainly agree with you that

20 these are excess funds that perhaps we didn't initially
21 expect to get, and so the question is what do we do with
22 it. And we come before you here and give you a suggestion
23 on what we think we should do with that excess funds,
24 which we think is, of course, as you've pointed out,
25 warranted.

1

20
I think the issue is probably one of timing

2 more than anything else it sounds like.
3

COUNCILMSMBER ARAKAWA: And if we spend it

4 all and we come up to budget and we're short some place,
5 we've already expended some of the moveable funds. So
6 it's part of the overall project, when we're looking at it
7 in my mind, it should be part of a process. Because in
8 your department, you say you could put it to other
9 agencies rather than just a position.
10

If you didn't get this position today, you

11 would use it for other purposes. It wouldn't go back to
12 the government. So how we manipulate the funding that you
13 have available or how we try and plan for the funding that
14 you have available as far as the bigger picture is what I
15 have a concern about. Thank you.
16

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr.

17 Arakawa. Mr. Molina.
18

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

19

Question for Mr. Bissen. Richard, you state

20 in your letter of January 16th that funding is currently
21 available for full time salary and benefits from this
22 Federal source for at least another three years, and it is
23 anticipated that Federal funding will continue at the
24 present level or increase.
25

Now, the history of the funding from VOCA,

21
1 how long has the office been receiving federally -2 Federal funds from this office?
3

MR. BISSEN: About the mid 80's.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: About the mid 80's.

5 So, I guess my concern is I'd like to see continued
6 Federal funding with, you know, and not, as much as
7 possible, not use County funding if we can. So after this
8 three years is over, I guess it looks good, that, you
9 know, should your office need more funding that it can
10 depend on VOCA?
11

MR. BISSEN: Correct.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Now you got, I

13 guess, in your letter you received this VOCA, did tell you
14 that, you know, the funding level will increase. This was
15 directly from the national headquarters, I guess. They
16 did inform you that the funding levels they've assured
17 you that?
18

MR. BISSEN: You're talking about the future

19 levels?
20

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, the upcoming

21 three years and also for the future levels.
22

MR. BISSEN: Yeah, I think it's our best

23 estimate that it will remain the same and/or increase. I
24 can't tell you that anyone told us that that was going to
25 happen.

22
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So in the history of

1

2 this, the funding has never gone down?
MR. BISSEN: Well, it did on that one time.

3

4 We sort of got a spike, as I mentioned '96 we got 133 and
5 in '97 we got 319. And then after that it went back to
6 244, and 224 and now it's at 225. So it's been in that
7 range, but there was that spike between 133 then jumped up
8

to 300 --

9

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So it's been pretty

10 consistent for the most part?
11

MR. BISSEN: Yes.

12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you, Mr. Molina.

14

Mr. Kane to be followed by Mr. Nishiki.

15

COUNCILMEMBER KANE:. Thank you, Mr.

16 Chairman, and I apologize for being late this morning. No
17 problem.
18

Mr. Bissen, good morning.

19

MR. BISSEN: Good morning.

20

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Do you know what or if

21 you can just give an idea to this committee, where or what
22 agency, what Federal agency that this money is coming
23 from?
24

MR. BISSEN: Yeah, the Victims of Crime Act,

25 which is where these funds come from, is money that is

23
1 from Federal defendants, fines that they pay going into
2

this fund. That's the source.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: And so who administers

3

4 that money? What department in the Federal government
5 administers that money?
MR. BISSEN: I think it's the DOJ, Department

6
7 of Justice.
8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Justice.

9

MR. BISSEN: Yeah.

10

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

11

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Kane.

12

Mr. Nishiki.

13

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Richard, you

14 know, you mentioned that we can either pass this money on
15 to other agencies that are involved in this area, number
16 one, or use the money to give that person a full time
17 position now.
18

I think the policy questions for us is should

19 we give it to an agency that is now serving the
20 Prosecuting Attorney in this area, and how well are they
21 doing in assisting you, and maybe you could give us an
22 idea on the agencies that had been helping you, because
23 these agencies may be one that also comes and hits us up
24 for money during the time for grants review or who knows
25 when.

1

24
And why would you say it the money would be

2 better used to get this warm body in your division rather
3 than an agency that is assisting you in the area that the
4 money can be used for and beef them up. And if I'm headed
5 up the wrong tree, then tell me also.
6

MR. BISSEN: Of course she's already in our

7 department. So it's just a question of whether she's half
8 time or full time.
9
10

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.
MR. BISSEN: Okay, so we're not adding her,

11 but I'll let Lena describe to you the other agencies that
12 receive monies from us. We administer those funds and
13 we're entitled to give those to other agencies.
14

MS. LORENZO: We've been getting -- we've

15 been giving grants to Women Helping Women in the areas of
16 domestic violence. And in the area of sex assault we were
17 subgranting Maui Kokua Services, but as of last year, this
18 current fiscal year, Maui Kokua Services did not get their
19 contract to provide sex assault services.
20

Child and Family Services got their contract

21 for sex assault. However, they have not been able to hire
22 personnel to do that position. So therefore we did not
23 give them any money this fiscal year. But the previous
24 years those were the two agencies that were given, Women
25 Helping Women to fund their domestic violence hot line,
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1 and Kokua Services to do outreach -- fund the outreach
2 counselor for the outlying areas of Hana, Molokai and
3

Lanai.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, how much money

5 have you been giving them, and being that you are the
6 receiving agency, how do you overlook how their money is
7 being spent, number one?
8

MS. LORENZO: Uh-huh.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And to see how

10 effective a job they're doing?
11

MS. LORENZO: Uh-huh.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Are you doing that,

13

first?

14

MS. LORENZO: Yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And the answer is do

16 they do a good job?
17

MS. LORENZO: Women Helping Women with their

18 domestic violence hot line they've been doing a good job.
19 We fund them about -- the latest funding was about
20 $24,000.00 that's what they requested. We monitor them.
21 I talk to the program director. I look at their time
22 sheets. I look at statistics that they have. They give
23 us quarterly reports. And I have ongoing communication
24 with the director there.
25

Like I said, Maui Kokua Services did not
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1 receive the contract for sex assault, so at this time we
2 did not give any money to a sex assault agency.
3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And, Richard, I don't

4 know who wants to answer this question. So this is where
5 now the void is, and you're deciding that the money -- I
6 don't know how much you gave to Maui Kokua Services or
7 when this contract ended.
8

MS. LORENZO: 20,000.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How much?

10

MS. LORENZO: 20,000 a year. 20,000.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And when this ended,

12 but is this the void that you people are now looking to
13 band-aid?
14

MS. LORENZO: That's one of the voids, yes.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Why can't Women

16 Helping Women deal with it?
17

MS. LORENZO: They don't provide sex assault

18 services. They only provide domestic violence services.
19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And Maui Child

20 Services you said had a problem in hiring a warm body. Is
21 that what it is?
22

MS. LORENZO: Yes.

23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For what reason?

24 They didn't have any money?
25

MS. LORENZO: They have the money. They got
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1 the contract from the State, but there's nobody to do the
2 services. There's no personnel to do it.
3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So, Richard, between

4 you and I, so you think the money is better spent here
5 because, what, you have more control or you have a warm
6 body that is doing a good job?
7

MR. BISSEN: Both. But the control is really

8 not the issue. What we have is a need and we can fill
9 that need right now. We are filling the need. That half
10 time is working almost full time hours anyway in overtime
11 and other things that we end up carrying.
12

You know, I should tell you about the history

13 of the funding that we've provided to other agencies which
14 is one of the things we can do, we're not required to do.
15 And in years when the money's been very thin in the past
16 we've had to use the funding to pay for our own personnel
17 so we could sustain our own program.
18

But in years of plenty, we've shared that

19 money with other agencies, not because we want to monitor
20 them or control them, but because we know they provide a
21 good service too. It's not a competition thing or
22 anything like that. We have a calling. They have a
23 calling. We try to do the best we can. They support in
24 other areas. I guess that's what it comes down to.
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, for me, it's
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1 not a competition thing either, Richard. I think it has a
2 thing -- it has to do with you're receiving the money, how
3 well you're monitoring these programs, why Kokua Services
4 is out, and that arena that they were covering, who's
5 covering now without that void now? I don't know, and
6 maybe you have the answer, you could tell us who's
7 covering that area of service that was left because Kokua
8 Service is not there?
9

MS. LORENZO: Well, Child and Family Services

10 is trying to hire personnel to do that. They have a half
11 time therapist at the present time and they hired an
12 outreach educator. I heard she was there a few months and
13

left.

14

So, we've been doing part of it.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, I'm done.

16

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Nishiki, thank you.

17 Mr. Kawano, did you have a question?
18

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Good morning, Mr.

19 Chairman, and good morning, Richard. I had the same
20 question that Wayne had asked, just beat me to it, but
21 actually I don't have anything else. I just wanted to
22 find out who they sending the money out to, Mr. Chairman.
23

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kawano. Mr.

24 Arakawa.
25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, what I'm
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1 understanding that you're trying to do now is Kokua
2 Service was serving an area. Child and Family Service bid
3 for that contract and apparently beat out Kokua Service,
4 but they can't provide the contract for service and you're
5 trying to create the full time position so that your staff
6 can fill that void.
7

MR. BISSEN: No. No, that's not what we

8 said. Mr. Nishiki's question was who do we give the money
9 to and what areas do they work in. What Lena said was
10 some of the area that is not being covered our counselor
11 can cover. It can provide crisis counseling, for example,
12 as I mentioned earlier on, but it wasn't our intent to
13 replace or cover that. We have other needs for our
14 counselor that I've already read through that Kokua
15 Services or Maui Child Family Services wouldn't provide
16 anyway.
17

So we have other areas. I've talked about

18 increasing our volunteer program, our outreach program,
19 these things. So we're not intending -- I mean it's more
20 of a coincidence that that other group has not hired
21 anyone and they're not getting funding. That's sort of a
22

side.

23
24
25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: It's an interesting
side.
MR. BISSEN: Yeah.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: But the person -- I'm

2 trying to get back specifically to why you're hiring -3 what you're going to do with expanded services. Now the
4 expanded -- the half position, you said that that person
5 is going to be working in counseling to expanded into that
6 area. What they're doing currently, plus to expand into
7 that area, and do a little bit more counseling. And now
8 you're saying it's not the same type of counseling or not
9 in the field where Kokua Services was doing it and Child
10 and Family Services is supposed to be doing.
11

MR. BISSEN: No, that's not what I said.

12 What I said is we were not trying to replace that service.
13

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No, I under --

14

MR. BISSEN: Okay, that's what I said.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, but that person

16 is going to be doing that kind of counseling?
17

MR. BISSEN: Some of it. That's right.

18 Yeah, the short term crisis counseling, which is all we
19 do. We do not do long term counseling. That's not what
20 we do.
21

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right. So if --

22

MR. BISSEN: We refer 'em. They come in.

23 They've been hurt. We give them short term counseling,
24 and we refer them to another agency to take over from
25 there. That's one of the things that we do. We do not
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1 provide the long term counseling that other agencies
2 provide.
3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Or should provide.

4

MR. BISSEN: Do provide. There are other

5 agencies that do provide that. We don't.
6

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If Child and Family

7 Services is not doing the job because they cannot perform
8 and they have a contract for it, that's an area we need to
9 get a little bit more into at the budgeting session, but
10 I'm not going to get into that now.
11

I'm just trying to understand that the

12 position that you're trying to fill now is -- the need
13 that you have that you seek currently right now is to tryu
14 and fill this voice because there's a gap there. That's
15 the reason why you want to speed this process up to fill
16 that void.
17

If that is the case, then you know you

18 actually have a very legitimate case for trying to speed
19 the process up. So that's what I'm trying to understand.
20 You have to for provide a service because it's not being
21 provided adequately and you need to supplement that, and
22 in long term you're going to be changing the position to
23 other, to have other benefits as the contractor can come
24 into it? I see that as a justifiable need to speed up the
25 process the three or four months we're talking about. So

1 that's why I'm trying to understand this.
2
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MR. BISSEN: And I thank you for that, Mr.

3 Arakawa. And I guess it would be easy for me to say that
4 that is our reason, but it wasn't the intent of why we
5 brought it forward. It was more of coincidence that that
6 other agency has not found a person, and I'd hate to
7 mislead this body and just get the position and say, yeah,
8 that's exactly why we did this, because it wouldn't be -9 it wouldn't be honest for me to say that.
10

Everything I've said, and I won't repeat and

11 I won't change what I've said. We have the funding.
12 There was an increase in the funding and that's why we
13 asked that we be allowed to increase this position. As a
14 coincidence, there is a service that's lacking, okay, but
15 that's not why it's coming before you now. As you pointed
16 out, it's a valid justification that you just pointed out.
17
18

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I see it as a valid
justification.

19

MR. BISSEN: Right.

20

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And in my mind, you

21 know, I'm trying to figure out why I shouldn't ask that
22 this be delayed until the regular budgeting cycle, and I
23 saw that as an opportunity to look at it and say, well,
24
25

that's justification for it.
MR. BISSEN: Yeah. No, I understand. I
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1 guess the reason for that is because the money's available
2 now, unlike the budget cycle where you start with a new
3 budget and a new cycle. This money's available now and
4 it's kind of a hybrid because they have a different fiscal
5 year in October, and also because of a different funding
6 source. So I guess those are the reasons why this is
7 probablyh not like the typical budget situation.
8

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, thank you very

9 much.
10

THE COURT: Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

11 Arakawa. Mr. Kane.
12

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: One question, Mr. Chair.

13

Mr. Bissen, I'm just trying to get

14 clarification. You mentioned that you're dealing with a
15 position which is considered half time, but that person is
16 working closer to full time with overtime. Is this money
17 intended to be used to alleviate your overtime output?
18

MR. BISSEN: Absolutely.

19

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr. Kane.

21

Anyone else? If not, it is the Chair's

22 recommendation to the committee to do two things -- three
23 things. Pass out the proposed bill, which will recognize
24 the additional 79,000 plus dollars to increase the
25 equivalent personnel count by .5, and third, filing of

1 communication 01-49.

34

2

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: So moved.

3

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Seconded.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. I have a

5 motion from Mr. Kane. Seconded by Mr. Kawano.
6 Discussion, members? Mr. Kane.
7

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: No discussion, Mr.

8 Chairman.
9

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Mr.

10 Arakawa.
11

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

12

I'm going to support this bill because I

13 think that the Prosecuting Attorney actually needs the
14 position and because we're cutting into the overtime pay.
15 It's already paying the position for all intents and
16 purposes and it's better to have a full time employee with
17 the confidence that they are in a full time position
18 rather than part-time. So I think it's something I will
19 support.
20

I do think the department needs to be looking

21 a little bit closer at budgeting cycles and how we analyze
22 this, and the Administration needs to do the same thing
23 because we're getting a lot of these that are outside of
24 the normal budgeting cycle, and it seems that if it's
25 something that has been occurring for years, since the
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1 80's, it's something that should be planned for a lot
2 better, but I will support this measure because I think
3

it's a good one.

4

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

5 Arakawa. Mr. Kawano.
6

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Thank you again, Mr.

7 Chairman. Mr. Chairman, I second the motion and I will be
8 supporting it because personally I think Richard Bissen
9 has been doing a good job as far as running that
10 department, and I feel that what he's asking for and I
11 know he knows that he can wait for the budget time, but
12 since they have the funding and funding is so important,
13 that we move it out. So I will be supporting the motion,
14 Mr. Chairman.
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

16 Kawano. Mr. Molina.
17

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair, call for

18 the question.
19

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. The

20 question is on a motion to amend the Fiscal Year 2001
21 budget to do two things; recognize a $79,666.00 Federal
22 grant for the Special Needs Advocacy Project, as well as
23 increasing the equivalent personnel count by .5, and, of
24 course, filing of communication 01-49.
25

All in favor say "aye."
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1

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

2

CHAIR HOKAMA: All opposed say no. Motion is

3

carried.

4

Councilmembers Arakawa, Carroll,

VOTE: AYES:

5

Johnson, Kane, Kawano, Molina,

6

Nishiki, and Chair Hokama.

7

NOES:

None.

8

EXC.:

Councilmember Tavares.

9

ABSENT:

None.

ABSTAIN: None.

10
11

MOTION CARRIED

12

ACTION:

13

FIRST READING of proposed bill, and
FILING of communication.

14 BF-58:

AMENDMENT TO THE FISCAL YEAR 2001 BUDGET

15

RELATING TO THE DEPARTMENT OF THE PROSECUTING

16

ATTORNEY (INCREASE OF 1.0 EQUIVALENT

17

PERSONNEL IN THE GENERAL PROSECUTION PROGRAM)

18

(C.C. No. 01-48)

19

CHAIR HOKAMA: The second item on the agenda

20 is item 58. This is a request from Mr. Richard Bissen,
21 Prosecuting Attorney for the County of Maui, as it relates
22 to the fiscal year 2001 budget requesting an increase of
23 1.0 equivalent personnel in the General Prosecution
24 Program. At this time, Mr. Bissen, would you care to
25 share your comments?
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MR. BISSEN: Yes. I think I should start

1

2 addressing the timing of this first because it sounds like
3 that's what this is going to end up too.
We recently -- well, actually I shouldn't say

4

5 recently. Whenever Corporation Counsel of this County has
6 an opening, they tend to come and drain the prosecutors
7 from our office. And I think that's good for the
8 prosecutors if they feel they can get a better position
9 working for another division in the County.
10

What prompted this particular timing was the

11 recent hiring by Jimmy of Richard Minatoya. Richard
12 Minatoya has been with us for not quite two years, I
13 believe, and he was in the appellate area of our division
14 of our office and was literally doing the work of two
15 people. And him having left us in mid-January has caused
16 a tremendous void that I felt we couldn't wait until the
17 cycle to make this request.
18

And that's, first of all, the timing, and

19 I'll be happy to answer more specific questions if I'm
20
21

asked.
The second part of this is in discussing

22 this, the funding of this position, we believe we will
23 have surplus in our department between now and the end of
24 June. And it is with that surplus that we intend to pay
25 for this position.
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And we're asking for it to be an entry level

1

2 position. I can tell you right now the plan is to hire an
3 entry level person and to move another experienced person
4 in our office into the Appellate Division, thereby
5 increasing it from two people it currently is to three
6 people.
7

Now, to answer Mr. Nishiki's question

8 earlier, we have tremendous amount of appeals. The only
9 reason you get appeals is if you get convictions and
10 people want to appeal that. And I guess we've gotten our
11 fair share of convictions, because we're really
12 overwhelmed in the Appellate Division.
13

That's the good and the bad of it. When you

14 think you've won the case, you've just begun the fight,
15 because now there's going to be a lot of battles fought in
16 the Appellate Division, and we've seen a remarkable
17 increase in that particular area and that is where the
18 position would go, to the Appellate Division. So that's
19 why we're asking for it now and that's how we intend to
20
21

fund it.
I should tell you a couple of things that I

22 think are important to know. The last time the
23 Prosecutor's Office had an expansion of any attorney was
24 in 1993. We've not requested, nor have we received any
25 increase in staff.

1
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The other thing I should tell you is right

2 now we currently have 25 deputy prosecutors. With myself
3 we have a total of 26 attorneys in the office. In 1995
4 the budget budgeted for 31 deputies, 32 with the head
5 prosecutor. That was 1995, fiscal '95.
6

Eventually the filled positions in 1994 was

7 27 deputies and one prosecutor, so a total of 28. We have
8 been at 26 from the day I started as a prosecutor in
9 August of 1995. So we've received no increases since '93
10 and we've been less than we've ever been, than the high
11 that we've been at in other points in our department's
12 history. And, again, we have a demonstrated need,
13 especially in our Appellate Division.
14

In 1996 we did 39 appeals. In the year 2000

15 we did 72. And the numbers aren't going lower. So that's
16 what I have to say.
17

COUNCILMENBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr.

19 Bissen. Anyone else that wants to make a comment this
20 morning from the Administration at this time? Okay,
21

seeing none, Mr. Kane.

22

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

23

And just one question, Mr. Bissen, if you can

24 share with this committee the, the attitude of the
25 opposition since you folks are in a very adversarial arena
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1 in the judicial system, give us your thoughts on what the
2 opposing side feels about this perceived bottlenecks -- or
3 it's a bottleneck in the sense that we don't have enough
4 personnel in there to do the job that we need, and that's
5 why you're here, how are they feeling? I mean are they
6 coming in there, hey, they're short, let's go for it? Can
7 you give us some thoughts on that?
8

MR. BISSEN: I think they should and they do

9 fear us. I don't think they think for a second that we're
10 at a disadvantage, because we have a way of rallying when
11 we need to. The reason I'm here is not to give an image
12 to the defense bar that we're stronger than we are or that
13 we're not as weak as we're perceived.
14

The reason I'm here is I know the hours that

15 my attorneys have to keep and the work they have to do to
16 keep up, and they do keep up and that's to answer Mr.
17 Nishiki's questions, we're not losing cases. We're not
18 losing appeals.
19

In fact, I think Richard Minatoya won all

20 except for maybe two or three of the 70 or so appeals he
21 wrote in that short time that he was with us. We're not
22 losing. We're just getting tired. A lot of people are
23 getting tired. That's what it is.
24

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thanks. And that's,

25 that's what I'm trying to get a feel of because we're not
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1 machines. We're humans, and I think that's the reason why
2 you're here to demonstrate that we as a body need to
3 recognize that you folks need the available resources to
4 continue what you folks have already demonstrated I think
5 throughout the time that you've been there especially, and
6 not to take anything away from prior prosecutors. But
7
8

thank you. That's all for me.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

9 Kane. Any other questions. Mr. Arakawa?
10

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just for

11 reclarification, Richard. You're gonna be funding this
12 through what would normally be carry over savings?
13
14
15

MR. BISSEN: Yes, sir. For the remainder of
this fiscal year, that's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just so you know, I'm

16 not going to be supporting this because I think it should
17 come to the regular budget process. The fact that I work
18 in the system, and virtually every department feels that
19 they need more staffing, and they need to be able to break
20 their employees, that's just part of what every
21 department's requests are.
22

If we could say that you know, we need to do

23 that, Parks Department would be in here today with request
24 for 30 new personnel. I think this particular request,
25 because it's not funding and trying to create a new
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1 position to try and expand the department to take care of
2 some of this overload, needs to be done in the regular
3 budget cycle.
4

And while the other one I was willing to

5 consider because of the fact that you're already paying
6 overtime and it's a special funding, I was willing to
7 support that. But I won't support this, not because I
8 don't see the justification, but I think the case needs to
9 be made a lot better in the budgeting cycle as to why your
10 department versus any other department should be receiving
11 additional personnel. Because I know that when we talk to
12 the Fire Department, we talk to the Parks Department, and
13 a lot of the other agencies, it's the same thing.
14

A lot of the personnel are being burned out.

15 There's morale problems within a lot of the departments,
16 and I just think that this particular request, I'll look
17 at more, I prefer to look at in the regular budgeting
18 cycle. Thank you.
19

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments,

20 Mr. Arakawa. Mr. Nishiki.
21

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, Mr. Chairman,

22 you know, you said that you wanted to look at it in
23 another light. But I'm having the same problem as is Mr.
24 Arakawa, which is expanding County government and seeing
25 this justification. Maybe you can tell me, or
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1 Administration can tell me, is this the tactic that
2 they're going to be using in regards to making it so that
3 this next budget is not filled with new positions just as
4 this going to be reflected, you know, the old budget?
5

How many warm bodies, I'm sure that you

6 probably know now, now that we're in last part of
7 February, how many warm bodies do you intend to ask for
8 during this next budget session? Knew warm bodies, head
9 count?
10

CHAIR HOKAMA: Michele Yoshimura, if you want

11 to answer the Chair will allow you. If not, anyone want
12 to prepare an answer for Mr. Nishiki can you do so.
13

MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay, um, Mr. Nishiki, at

14 this time the budget has not been released to the Council.
15 We're still working on it. The numbers are not firm. So
16 I'd rather not commit myself to any number at this time.
17

But I'd like to point out that the reason the

18 prosecutor's are asking for this one position is because
19 there's a need for another position, okay. There's -- the
20 work is there, and in the Prosecuting Department, the
21 attorneys don't get paid overtime. They're faced with
22 whatever work there is. They need to complete it. They
23 don't get paid the overtime as in other departments.
24

So if we could at least spread the work

25 around a little bit more, where you won't see an

44
1 overburden on just a few employees, and that's what we're
2 trying to do in this case here.
3

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Nishiki.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Mr. Chairman, if I

5 may. That's good and fine, Michele, and I'll ask Richard,
6 how in other ways they may be compensated? So you'd
7 rather not give us any indication on how many warm bodies,
8 or approximately, this Administration is looking at. Is
9 that top secret?
10

MS. YOSHIMURA: No, it's not top secret.

11 Okay. An indication -12

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, hold on. Hold on,

13 members. I understand your point, Mr. Nishiki, and you
14 will have your ample opportunities to review those
15 numbers. I am not going to let the discussion go to
16 speculation of what position counts will be in the future.
17 Until we know what the counts are, I don't think it would
18 be proper for us to discuss that.
19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, I'll move my

20 questions in other areas.
21

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: If I can ask the

23 Administration, how many more emergency situations before
24 the next budget and before someone dies or something are
25 we going to see this Administration coming before this
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1 Council asking for? I mean, and the budget chair
2 obviously saw this as a do or die, otherwise it wouldn't
3 be before us. But how many more?
4

MS. YOSHIMURA: None.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you. Can I

6 switch the line of questioning?
7

CHAIR HOKAMA: Of course, Mr. Nishiki.

8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Richard, you say you

9 have 26 warm bodies including yourself right now.
10

MR. BISSEN: Yes, sir.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Support staff or

12 attorneys only?
13

MR. BISSEN: Just attorneys.

14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Attorneys only.

15

MR. BISSEN: We have four counselor -- four

16 investigators, five and a half, maybe six counselors, the
17 the rest are support staff. Our total count is about 67,
18
19

68.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 67, 68. Now, when

20 you say attorneys 26 including yourself, are these all
21 County funded or do you have attorneys that are federally
22 funded or from other places?
23

MR. BISSEN: Some of 'em are State funded.

24 No, Federally funded. No, Federally funded attorneys.
25

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So the total count is
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1 26, including Federal funded, State funded, County funded,
2 whatever.
3

MR. BISSEN: Yes, that's the total count.

4

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right. So you have

5 got that. Have you been having problems with recruitment
6 of attorneys? You mentioned about Minatoyha leaving. I
7 know that there was another.
8

MR. BISSEN: Robert Rivera. Moana Lutey.

9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: A young boy Bobby

10

(inaudible).

11

MR. BISSEN: About six.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: About six.

13

MR. BISSEN: Yeah, they left our office. We

14 train 'em well, and they want to go to other places.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, now the

15

16 question is how long it takes from when you have a full
17 staff, because when you don't, then, of course, the other
18 attorneys are having to take care of the slack while you
19

recruit.

20

MR. BISSEN: Our recruitment is not bad. We

21 have a waiting list of people that want to -22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Your positions have

23 been filled and yet you're saying you still need more
24 attorneys.
25

MR. BISSEN: Sir, there's a huge difference
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1 between an experienced prosecutor that goes out and a new
2 person that just walks in.
3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Right.

4

MR. BISSEN: A huge difference.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And so what can you

6 tell me about your staff right now in regards to
7 experience, what, ten years is called experience, that
8 have been with the office ten years?
9

MR. BISSEN: Average length -- I shouldn't

10 say length of employment, but the average years of license
11 by an attorney in our office is probably eight or nine
12 years. But we have quite a few newer ones that are
13 expected to come along through the system.
14

You know, we have certain needs. The

15 appellate area is one of those needs. We have an
16 experienced attorney and one not as experienced in there
17 right now. I would have describe Richard as an
18 experienced attorney and that's who we lost.
19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So when you recruit

20 now for this area, you just recruit specifically for
21 appellate. You don't have anyone in your current -22

MR. BISSEN: I have someone in the office in

23 mind who I will move to that division, who's interested in
24 that division, and I will hire a brand new person to take
25 that person's position. That's what my plan is.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, I guess the

2 justification now is Minatoya or whomever that person was,
3 was doing a great job. And now you have someone already
4 that you need -- well, you're considering to move to the
5 appellate. Has it been -- have you done that yet?
6

MR. BISSEN: No, I can't afford to do that

7 because there would be a void where that person is now.
8

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It's that tight?

9

MR. BISSEN: Absolutely. I have five people

10 that do only District Court, Hana, Molokai, Lanai, Lahaina
11 and Wailuku District Court. Five people to do all of
12 that. The person that I intend to move would come from
13 those five. That's not to mention when people get sick or
14 they take vacation or go to trainings.
15

We're often not at full staff during the week

16 anyway, for one reason or another. So for me to pull one
17 of those five out from my District Court division to add
18 to the appellate now would be a huge mistake.
19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: You, you, already

20 said you've got the strain on an already overworked staff.
21

MR. BISSEN: That's absolutely correct.

22

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Give me a scenario of

23 your justification on how many hours these people are
24 working, number one; how you give compensation, I mean,
25 comp. time. I don't know what other areas you can use to

1
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do it.

2

MR. BISSEN: Okay.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And -- well, those

4

two areas.

5

MR. BISSEN: The hours, I would be just

6 taking a guess. But I'd say anywhere from probably
7 averaging 10 to 12 hour days. If you include weekends,
8 which many people come in on weekends to work. That would
9 be my guess. And higher when people are sick or people
10 are out, because the work still needs to get done.
11

And, I'm sorry, your second question was?

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Compensation.

13

MR. BISSEN: Well, they're not eligible for

14 comp. time and they don't get overtime. So the
15 compensation I get 'em is when I tell 'em they have the
16 thanks of their boss and the County of Maui.
17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. You said that

18 we had 31 and now we've got 26 warm bodies.
19

MR. BISSEN: That's right. We were funded

20 for 31. 28 were filled. I'm saying that's the high that
21 this department has been at. So I don't know if we can be
22 compared necessarily to Parks or Fire because I don't know
23 how many other departments have actually gone down over
24
25

the years.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah.
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MR. BISSEN: So this, although would be seen

1

2 as an increase over what we currently have, it's certainly
3 not anywhere near what it was once at. And there were
4 justifications for those bodies then, and we've just been
5 trimmed. I submitted flat budgets from 1995 up until now.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, let me ask you

6

7 this. We've got directions now that we're taking in
8 judiciary, drug court, all these other areas that
9 hopefully would take some strain off of the -10

MR. BISSEN: It's adding to it.

11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Oh, it is?

12

MR. BISSEN: I have put an attorney into drug

13 court now who still has his full case load. No one gave
14 me an extra drug court attorney. I have child sex assault
15 cases that are piling up. I don't have an extra child sex
16 assault attorney. Everyone just spreads it out. I'm
17 doing some of those myself. That's what we're doing now.
18 Ben Acob writes most of the appeals, on the extra appeals.
19
20

He's

my first deputy.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: What about, like say,

21 now we're headed towards mediation and all these other
22 things that are supposedly going to keep things out of the
23 court. These things are not working?
24

MR. BISSEN: We haven't done 'em yet. But I

25 don't know what impact mediation will have. If it will be
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1 like drug court, it will add to the burden in the office.
2 It will be good for the community though. And it will be
3 good for the victims and the defendants, which is what
4 this is all about, but it'll be hard on my office.
5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Let me ask you this.

6 In all these areas that we're diverting into eliminating
7 going to court, I guess my question is, and you've got
8 some private people that are doing it also, are you saying
9 that attorneys are what's necessary, and not other people
10 that are not lawyers to do that type of work?
11

MR. BISSEN: I never said that.

12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Well, I'm asking --

13

MR. BISSEN: I'm saying that I need another

14 attorney. I can't tell you if he's more important or
15 she's more important than somebody else in the system.
16 That's what I need right now. Everybody's important.
17 Everybody has a function to do. You just sometimes in the
18 system have more of one than the other. And right now we
19 don't have enough attorneys -20

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: For the --

21

MR. BISSEN: -- for the job and the demands

22 that we have.
23

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I'm done.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr.

25 Nishiki. Mr. Carroll.

52
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. I'll be

1

2 supporting this because I see here we have an opportunity
3 to improve the working conditions in this department. We
4 have a chance to make them more effective and also improve
5 their morale. The cost factor, I'm satisfied that we're
6 getting more bang for our dollar by approving this at this
7 time, and I will support the motion. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much for your

8

9 comments, Mr. Carroll. Mr. Molina.
10

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

11

Question for Mr. Bissen. Richard, what is

12 the entry level salary for this position that you're
13 requesting, and your assessment of the morale in your
14 department because of this excessive workload?
15

MR. BISSEN: Entry level, I think wouldn't be

16 for the appellate person, but it would be for an entry
17

level person, is we start them at $40,000.00.

18

The morale, you know, it's hard to say.

19 There are good days and there are bad days. Kevin Jenkins
20 just went through a six week murder trial and he was under
21 a lot of stress. Until the jury told him yesterday the
22 guy was guilty of attempted murder in the first degree and
23 he'll serve a life sentence without parole. He felt much
24 better.
25

So it just depends on the news that you get
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1 that day. I think if I come back and tell 'em, you folks
2 will get another position, they'll be even happier.
3

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So this additional

4 position that you're requesting, how can it also improve
5 the efficiency of your department?
6

MR. BISSEN: We can get to the appeals

7 sooner. Right now -- see, I invite any of you to spend a
8 day with our office, and I'd be happy to show you around
9 myself and sort of give you the feel for what really
10 happens. But in the Appellate Division in particular,
11 there are deadlines. Right. The person files the opening
12 brief. You have at least 30 days to reply or and an
13 answering brief, or you ask for an extension, and you can
14 ask for one or two and then the Court starts saying, you
15 don't get any more extensions.
16

Now, if you're busy writing one brief, you

17 can't really put the effort into the other brief, but the
18 deadlines don't stop. You know, the extensions you need
19 to file. So you take work home. Come in on weekends.
20 You do everything you can to make the deadlines. I mean
21 that's the reality. That's the impact that it has.
22

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.

23

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much, Mr.

24 Molina. Anyone else? Okay, Mr. Kane first.
25

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

1
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Mr. Bissen, I guess there's still a timing

2 issue at hand here. And so I guess you may need to,
3 unless some of my colleagues have already made up their
4 mind, and I think you've done a good job of demonstrating
5 why this is a need for now, but I guess the philosophy is
6 when we have an annual budget, that we work with that
7 budget to submit. And I think Mr. Arakawa makes some good
8 points regarding his comments, and I happen to agree with
9 certain aspects of his comments.
10

My question is at the appellate level are --

11 is there, and you talked about deadlines, do you
12 anticipate within the next four months an amount of
13 deadlines that will justify this urgency to make this
14 move?
15

Now, for me the question is not the monies,

16 because you've already said you're not asking us for more
17 money, you're going to use it within what you have
18 already. Can you describe to us, if there's a increased
19 level that you need to meet as far as deadlines and that's
20 why this move is taking place, or in my understanding is
21 this part of the justification for your being here today
22 with this?
23

MR. BISSEN: Um, you know, I wish I could be

24 more specific, Mr. Kane, and I don't know if I want to put
25 Ben on the spot. Ben, do you have the appeals that are
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1 currently pending? Do you have any idea of those? Okay.
I could get that answer to you, Mr. Kane.

2

3 Maybe that's what I should do rather than talk off the top
4 of my head.
5

We're burdened in the area and I can't give

6 you the exact numbers. We've traditionally been, but with
7 the help of two experienced appellate writers, we've been
8 able to juggle that. You know, I certainly don't mean to
9 speak the praises of Richard Minitoya, and again it's just
10 a coincidence that it happened to be him that left the
11 office, but -- You know, he made the work seem easy. He
12 was very proficient. Very prolific too, as it turns out,
13 and got a lot done.
14

You can't expect that from everyone. Some

15 people are a little more gifted in the the area than
16 others. I mean he's not the average. So if he had three
17 or four on his plate, he seemed to be, you know, it didn't
18 seem to be a problem. For most people, myself included,
19 that would be a tremendous burden to do. And that's why
20 the timing. And can I speak to that, the timing thing
21
22

just a second.
COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Yes, please, if it's

23 okay with the Chairman. I have no problem. That's kind
24 of my line of questioning is this timing thing.
25

MR. BISSEN: With all respect to Mr.
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1 Arakawa's earlier comments and more recent comments, I
2 heard Mr. Arakawa say earlier that, you know, why didn't
3 we come sooner on the request for the half time position,
4 you know, we had the funding, we had the need, why did we
5 wait till now.
I think that's what's happening now. We have

6

7 the funding, we have the need, so I'm not waiting till
8 July, because maybe July comes and he says, well, if you
9 needed this back in February why didn't you come and see
10 us in February. Why didn't you tell us when you first had
11 it, maybe we could have done something for you. So here I
12
13

am.
I'm doing exactly what I think Mr. Arakawa

14 said I should have done in the other case, and I'm not
15 trying to throw that back at you, but I think I'm being in
16 good faith saying this is the need and this is why it's
17 now. I can wait until July. And you if folks deny us in
18 July then I'll wait till the next year and come again, and
19 then again and again and again, because it's my duty as
20 the director of my department to do this, and it's your
21 duty to evaluate me and give me the hard questions.
22

But now is the time. And now is why I'm

23 here. And we have the money to do it. We're not asking
24 for the money. And we have the need. And I'll come and
25 I'll repeat this again in July, or whenever before you
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1 decide that budget if that's what you choose. And I hope,
2 Mr. Arakawa, that you would change your mind, that you
3 would support this, and send that message to the community
4 and to my department, to my workers that this is, you
5 know, that I'm doing my job. I'm trying to get the help.
6 And you're doing your job by trying to help us get the
7
8

help.
You know, I didn't realize this was seen as a

9 political move by anyone. If I'd have known that, I
10 wouldn't put the Administration on the spot. Because I
11 asked for this and I asked for it to be now, not Michele
12 and not the Mayor. And I'm disappointed in myself if I
13 put them in a rough spot, because all the light seems to
14 be shining on them.
15

It wasn't them. When I heard Richard was

16 leaving, I went to Michele and I said, Michele, I need
17 this and I want it now. And I had to go and justify with
18 the Mayor and they said, go ahead, put it on, take your
19 shot. And I had to come before Riki and say, you know, I
20 need this on this bill. It wasn't anybody else. This is
21 not a move. It's not a political maneuver. This is Rick
22 Bissen saying I need this, how do I get it before people,
23 and let me give my talk. And I just need to correct that
24 misimpression.
25

I don't know what the Administration's plans
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1 are. I didn't realize I was doing anything wrong. I
2 thought when I needed something I was supposed to come
3 here and ask. So if anyone thinks otherwise, let me just
4 clear that up, and if that means we don't get it, then we
5

don't get it.

6

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Mr. Chairman.

7

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Kane.

8

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you. And my

9 comment is you're not doing anything wrong, Richard. And
10 I did have a question, but I think it would stray away
11 because -- but I will make a comment that I'd be
12 interested to know the conversation that you had with
13 Jimmy regarding this move.
14

We can see the effects with Mr. Minatoya

15 already in the Corporation Counsel's side, and I can
16 assure you that I will agree with your assessment of Mr.
17 Minatoya, that he's already starting to take on some work
18 loads that have been slowed up in the past. So we can
19 appreciate it from one end, but we can see the void -20 excuse me, I won't speak for anybody else. I can see the
21 void. And it's difficult, Richard, because again, I think
22 when we look at the Charter, there's certain language in
23 there that dictates when things happen, how things happen,
24 but I think there's enough flexibility in there that
25 provides us with the opportunity to recognize certain
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1 sensitivity issues regarding this, as far as a need that
2 is compelling enough for us to utilize the flexibility
3 that's provided for us in the Charter.
With that, Mr. Chairman, I'm pretty much set

4

5 on voting on whatever your recommendation is. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Kane. Mr.

6
7 Arakawa.
8

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Mr. Chairman.

9 And again, Richard, you know when I'm looking at this and
10 I'm looking at the budget process, understand that I was a
11 front line supervisor and understand that I've requested
12 positions before in the past and the timing has a lot to
13 do with what's going on. The ability to take funds and
14 say, okay, this is going to be from the unexpended funds
15 which would be carry over savings. If I may ask, you
16 know, what percentage of your budget is going to be coming
17 in as carry over savings if you take this out?
18
19
20

MR. BISSEN: We predicted the surplus would
be $65,000.00.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you're pretty much

21 right on the border of -22

MR. BISSEN: That's right.

23

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: -- what you're going

24 to be doing, so, you know, carry over savings reviews in
25 the past and, you know, I wasn't on the Council the last
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1 two years, but to supplement, and as part of the planning
2 for the next year's budget, if you eliminate that by
3 spending a lot of it, it's just not going to be there for
4 the next year's budget, and that's why it's very critical
5 for me, when I'm looking at this, that flexibility that
6 carryover savings allows for the department to plan
7 things, change things around, and be able to be flexible
8 is being affected by it.
9

And I'd like to look at it from the overall

10 perspective of how the entire County is doing. If every
11 department spent every penny that they had, then you
12 wouldn't -- you would eliminate a lot of the flexibility,
13 and that was part of the system to build that in the
14 ability to maneuver funding around, to change things
15 around, and we do the analysis. We have been doing the
16 analysis once a year except for special circumstances.
17

I don't see an emergency, and as you're

18 saying, it's not an emergency. It's an opportunity that
19 you're foreseeing. This request could have come in, you
20 know, almost any time. The fact that you have staff that
21 are not being paid overtime, that are not being
22 compensated for the extra hours, it's probably
23 compensatible within their salaries, which is why they're
24 probably getting a little bit higher salaries. There's
25 reasons why Council members don't get overtime either and
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1 other employees get compensated the way they do get
2 compensated.
3

So, yes, I will agree that you're probably

4 very correct in your assessment that your staff is
5 overworked, that they put in a lot of hours, but at the
6 same time, I still look at this, and I'm looking at what
7 we need to accomplish from a budgeting cycle and the
8 budgeting system and the timing of the budgeting system.
9

We should be getting the Administration's

10 request within about two weeks. I mean this is at the end
11 of the budgeting cycle. They should be submitting it now
12 with all of these position requests, and at this point,
13 you know, if this is not in there, two weeks from now it
14 will be in the budget that we can analyze.
15

You're saying you would put it in as a

16 request for budget. And my personal preference is to look
17 at this in the overall perspective. So that's why I'm
18 taking the position I have. And understand this is no
19 indication, and I know you realize this, how you're doing
20 your supervisory, what your timing is.
21

As a supervisor I took advantage of every

22 opportunity that I could to put in things when I thought
23 it was the best timing and that's just part of your job,
24 and you're doing your job, and you're doing it well by
25 putting in the request now.

1
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But also as a Council member I'm doing the

2 analysis of budget, and in order to do the best analysis I
3 like to have all the figures down at one time and that's
4 why I'm still going to be voting against this because of
5 the fact that I believe we should be doing this as part of
6 the regular budget, as part of the normal process where
7 every other department comes down and explains to us
8 what's happening within their department, where they're
9 short, why they're short, and we give serious
10 consideration to the total County picture all by -- by
11 looking at it all one time. Thank you.
12

MR. BISSEN: If I could just clarify, Mr.

13 Arakawa.
14

CHAIR HOKAMA: Hold on, Mr. Bissen. This is

15 not an open debate. We appreciate your comments, Mr.
16 Arakawa. Thank you.
17

Ms. Johnson.

18

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I would really

19 like to say that I, having been an employer before, I
20 realize what Mr. Bissen is facing and many times there are
21 employees that are more productive. They do contribute a
22 tremendous amount which really adds to the value that his
23 department or any department would deliver to the people
24 of Maui.
25

My basic feeling is that whenever you have a
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1 situation that involves the safety and the security of the
2 people of Maui, if that means getting a child molester off
3 the streets, if it means keeping them off the streets on
4 an overturn of appeal, I will always put the people of
5 Maui first. And I don't mean to disagree with any other
6 Council members because I've not been a part of this
7 budget process before, but there are times when I believe
8 we have to put the process second and people first.
And this I believe is one of those

9

10 circumstances. So I will be supporting the measure for
11 utilization of the funds that are already there. And I
12 just believe it's prudent that we take care of the safety
13 and security of the citizens of Maui and that -- having
14 said that, I would hope that other members would also
15 support that same view. Thank you.
THE COURT: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr.

16
17 Nishiki.
18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Richard, when you

19 recruit people do you tell them that you are hired and 40
20 hours is what you will work? Okay, good.
21

MR. BISSEN: Absolutely not. No professional

22 expects to work only a 40 hour week. That's exactly what
23
24

I tell them.
COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: And you also tell

25 them that they are not to be compensated in overtime or
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1 comp. time or whatever, that's the way it reads?
2

MR. BISSEN: That's right.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: So ultimately they

4 know ultimately what to expect and you tell them, hey, my
5 staff has been working, what, you said 10 hours to 12
6 hours, that means are you saying that you consider 42
7 hours as what is normal, and now you're telling this body
8 that they're working 52 hours and that's stressful? Is
9 what -- that was what you're saying to us today? That 10
10 to 12 hours is a representation of 40 plus 12 is how you
11 calculated that 10 or 12 hours more than any other
12 employee or whatever -- however you represented that to
13 be?
14

MR. BISSEN: I thought it was 50 to 60 hours.

15

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: 50 to 60 hours, okay.

16

MR. BISSEN: Right. That's what I said. I

17

don't think I said 42.

18

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. But --

19

MR. BISSEN: But what I do is I tell them

20 that 7:45 to 4:30 is the time that the County, the
21 community expects you to be in, because that's your office
22 hours and that's when they can reach you. I said, I
23 expect you to be in longer than that.
24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. And so the

25 carry over savings, do you know what area you save the

1 money from? Was that from --
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2

MR. BISSEN: Salaries.

3

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: It was from salaries?

4

MR. BISSEN: Yes.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Nothing outside that?

6

MR. BISSEN: No.

7

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Did any

8 municipalities, such as Maui and this was something I
9 think that everybody's talking about now where what, we
10 got 40,000 more tourists here every day compared to our
11 population. I think this really rocked a lot of people
12 here in Maui County when that appeared in the newspaper
13 recently.
14

Take aside that 40 -- oh, well, include it,

15 what is any normal office like yours seeing as having in
16 warm bodies? You said you had 60. Do you know across the
17 nation, or do you have any comparison that you can draw,
18 what the Big Island has or what Kauai has or what Oahu
19 has? I don't mean to use that as any judgment stick, now.
20

MR. BISSEN: Sure, I understand. The Big

21 Island has the same size staff that we have. We have 26
22 attorneys. I believe they have 25. Kauai prosecutors I
23 believe have nine prosecutors in their office. And
24 Honolulu has I think last count 113 prosecutors in their
25 office. That's what I can tell you about our State.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Have you talked to

2 many of these other offices statewide?
3

MR. BISSEN: All the time. We meet once a

4 month.
5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Good. And so what is

6 that ratio between their attorneys and ours and how are
7 they looking?
8

MR. BISSEN: I can't say I've ever compared

9 ratios with them. That would probably be an unfair
10 comparison because of the different -11

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Why?

12

MR. BISSEN: Well, first of all, if you look

13 at the Big Island, they have such a large land mass to
14 cover. They have an office in Kona and an office in Hilo,
15 which you can't really compare to us here. We have three
16 islands. We cover Lanai and Molokai. That's not fair to
17 compare us to Honolulu. Honolulu's a major city, 800,000
18 people.
19

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay, let me compare

20 appellate to appellate in cases.
21

MR. BISSEN: I can't tell you what the

22 numbers. I think Kauai has an appellate attorney and they
23 have nine people. We have 26 and we have two.
24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: How many cases?

25

MR. BISSEN: I can't tell you what Kauai

1
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does.

2

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki.

4

Anyone else questions for Mr. Bissen at this

5 time? If not, before I recommend a position from the
6 Chair, the Chair will take his responsibilities also that
7 I have been willing to post this item for discussion
8 today. I think it's very important. I believe Mr.
9 Bissen's request was justified for this committee to enter
10 into a discussion and make a decision whether it wants to
11 accept his request at this time or defer till the regular
12 budget submittal.
13

Nonetheless, the Chair will always bring it

14 up to the committee, and it is the committee's decision on
15 what we want to do or not do. So at this time the Chair's
16 position on item 58 is that I recommend passing proposed
17 ordinance amending the Fiscal Year 2001 budget as it
18 pertains to the Department of Prosecuting Attorney for the
19 additional 1.0 count.
20

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: So moved.

21

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Seconded.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Also, members, I

23 would like to include in that motion filing of
24 communication 01-48. I have a motion by Mr. Carroll and
25 seconded by Mr. Molina.

1
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Discussion members? Yes, Mr. Carroll, since

2 you made the motion.
3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you. I believe

4 that this motion and this item is appropriate at this
5 time. I believe by serving the department I think it will
6 help them to be more efficient which ultimately serves our
7 people and I think that's the bottom line here, serving
8 our people and I would hope that the rest of the Council
9 members would support this motion. Thank you.
10

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments.

11 Mr. Molina.
12

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair,

13 as I watch the news and read the papers you see crime and
14 civil cases on the rise, which for me is enough
15 justification to see an increasing workload for our
16 prosecuting office. And, you know, I will support this
17 because I believe it will improve the efficiency of the
18 office, and since there are deadlines that they have to
19 meet, I think it will make them much more efficient and
20 along with the aspect of morale in the office.
21

So, therefore, I'm in support of this.

22

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments.

23 Mr. Nishiki.
24

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: I forgot to ask Mr.

25 Bissen this, but maybe you know, Riki. You may have
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1 talked to him outside. Do you know if he's asking for any
2 more warm bodies in the next budget?
3

CHAIR HOKAMA: The honest answer, Mr.

4 Nishiki, is, no, I have no idea whether he's asking for
5 any additional bodies in his -- the proposed budget. So
6 at this time, I'm like you, I am anxiously awaiting the
7 Mayor's submittals so we can find out exactly what will be
8 before this committee for review and discussion.
9

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay. Like Mr.

10 Arakawa I'm just concerned, and maybe I did not hear when
11 I asked the question of you, Mr. Chairman, but do you
12 intend on before the budget session begins looking at any
13 other expansion positions asked by this Administration?
14

CHAIR HOKAMA: The Chair is not planning to

15 schedule any additional meetings regarding that matter,
16 Mr. Nishiki.
17

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Thank you.

18

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Arakawa.

19

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes, Chairman. Now,

20 in reviewing this this morning, if it passes we'll be
21 taking Prosecuting Attorney and we'll be giving them one
22 and a half positions. During the budget process I have no
23 idea how many more positions the Administration is going
24 to come down with and what the other departments are going
25 to be requesting. But I do hope that the Council
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1 realizes, you know, there's always positions requested.
2

If Fire Department could request other

3 positions, I'm sure they would be looking at the new Kihei
4 fire station, the Wailea fire station will have to be
5 fully manned. And that will require a lot of bodies, and
6 the overall requirement for manpower if we do this one at
7 a time and we don't analyze things in the total
8 perspective of what we need to analyze for the entire
9 County budget, can get overwhelming.
10

Every single department that comes in is

11 going to have needs and they're going to be able to
12 justify their needs. There's no question in my mind about
13 that, which is why we've seen, you know, in past
14 administrations times where the number of government
15 employees have really risen dramatically.
16

And I can understand some of the newer

17 Council members looking at the situation and saying, well,
18 you know we really need to improve this particular one
19 because it's a special need. And what you're going to
20 find is that everybody that comes before you, every social
21 service agency that comes before us, are going to be able
22 to say very similar things. We have very pressing needs.
23 We're serving the public in very critical areas and you
24 need to help us here.
25

At the same time we have a limited amount of
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1 funding. There's a limited amount of money that can go
2 around and a limited amount of taxpayer dollars. We are
3 accountable for that limited amount and how it's being
4 disbursed, in the totality of how it takes care of our
5 entire County operations.
So, that being said, now everybody has to

6

7 make up their own mind, and it's fine what's happening
8 now, but understand that when we come to budgeting system,
9 which will be occurring within about two weeks, the Mayor
10 is going to be landing that, there are going to be many
11 other requests. And bypassing this today, you put the
12 Prosecuting Attorney's Office ahead of everybody else in
13 their request in the analysis.
14

So you don't know what any of the other

15 departments are requesting. You don't know what the other
16 needs are, and that's why I'm asking for time to put this
17 back into the normal budget so we can see what's
18 occurring. This is not an emergency. Richard is already
19 saying this is not an emergency. This is an opportunity
20 for him to request other funding. Almost every department
21 could have come in and done the same thing with carry over
22
23

savings.
So, you know, I firmly believe that they are

24 understaffed and that they feel that they need other
25 positions. But I also feel that we have a process that we
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1 work through and that is the budget process. The need for
2 our community in taking care of the needs in our community
3 is our obligation, and we need to do that obligation in
4 the totality of what all the needs are in a complete
5 assessment. This is a partial assessment based on the
6 request of one segment of our community, not the entire
7 budget process that we should be doing.
8

So I'm still going to vote no on that basis.

9 Not because I don't believe the Prosecuting Attorney has
10 justification for it, because I believe he does and he
11 really feels that he needs the personnel and his staff is
12 being burned out, but there are other departments that I'm
13 sure have the same problem.
14

I've talked with people in the Parks

15 Department. Many of their employees are working overtime.
16 Many of their employees are stressed to very, very tough
17 positions. Police Department, many of the police officers
18 are working overtime. They're being very stressed out.
19 For safety issues the Fire Department needs to have more
20 personnel. All of those things need to come into
21 consideration in the totality of decision-making.
22

And while we feel very strongly -- while I

23 feel very strongly, I would like to give all the
24 departments as many personnel as they can to do their job
25 in the most adequate way. That's on a practical basis not
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1 feasible. But I'd like to analyze it on the totality of
2 what we have to look for and look at it in the budget.
3 Sothat's why my vote is going to stay where it is. And
4 however it goes, that's fine with me.
5

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments

6 Mr. Arakawa. Yes, Mr. Nishiki.
7

MR. NISHIKI: Yeah, I will -- I'll make a

8 statement. You know, when I asked and Alan has a concern
9 about carry over savings, Mr. Chairman, and I want to make
10 this really crystal clear. I am a little upset also from
11 the fact that not for you, Richard, but it's your
12 department anyway, and you managed it, that if this
13 department is a reflection of what is happening within
14 this Administration where we're not going to see carry
15 over savings, and we thought in last year's budget that
16 giving them their request, not cutting back, was going to
17 perhaps reflect some carry over savings, but if this
18 department is going to be flat in carry over savings, I'm
19 concerned.
20

And I hope that this Administration is not

21 telling their departments to spend, spend, spend towards
22 the end of this year, Mr. Chairman. And if that is the
23 situation, I guess we'll deal with it in the budget.
24

But that is not to take away from the needs,

25 and so when I ask the question about any other department
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1 coming and saying, emergency, and I need it, is welcome
2 news for myself. And I hope we're not going to get any
3 other sprung departments coming in and pleading and
4 begging on their knees to you, Mr. Chairman, that there's
5 going to be more bodies requested before this budget.
6

But still the concern, I will support this

7 because it's the last one we're going to hear, and I
8 believe that there may be a need and I would hate to see
9 some needy person out there in the area of the Prosecuting
10 Attorney fall down and lose the case because of the lack
11 of warm -- a warm body.
12

But at the same time, I would hope that as we

13 are moving in County government that we will see more
14 efficiency in the areas of those that are managing their
15 departments. I'm not saying to you, Richard, that you're
16 not. I think you brought some justification, but the
17 carry over savings is a red light for me, and I hope it's
18 not going to be throughout each department. Thank you.
19

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments

20 Mr. Nishiki. Anyone else? Yes, Mr. Kane.
21

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

22

I'll be supporting the motion on the floor.

23 And I would hope that this body would consider in the long
24 term the recognition of carry over savings not being
25 something that we consider a revenue source, but rather
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1 something that is being used -- well, I'll back up and say
2 carry over savings is basically either it's being a
3 department is running efficiently, and if we get down to
4 zero then I think that that demonstrates if that director
5 of that particular department can come in and demonstrate
6 to us that every dollar was spent was justified, then I
7 think we can't penalize somebody for doing that by
8 utilizing monies they were able to save in an office and
9 utilize their budget to it's fullest extent, and I think
10 that's what's happening here today. I think the
11 Prosecutor has come forward and they've shown that there
12 is monies that he think will be left over and he's not
13 looking at carrying it over to be recognized by this body
14 as some sort of money that we can look at next year to
15 spend for next year, when it's actually needed this year.
16 And I think he's taken the approach of this is my need,
17 and I'm here to ask you folks to consider me using that
18 need or using that monies, nothing new, no extra money,
19 new money from you folks, just existing money I have in my
20 program and I just want to utilize that.
21

I think the discussion will come up for which

22 was brought up earlier regarding extra bodies and that
23 merits the discussion and we'll cross those bridges when
24 we get to them. But I think at this point, I think
25 we're -- and I'll agree with one of my colleagues who used
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1 the word, prudent. I think this is a prudent decision on
2 our part. I think we're taking action. We're recognizing
3 a need that's going to benefit the community.
4

I think that we're not looking at asking for

5 any other monies, pulling out money out of the sky. It's
6 somthing that's there and we're going to use it. And I
7 think as long as we can justify it, which I think the
8 Prosecutor has done, I think it's a good move. And again,
9 the Charter, I think, allows us that flexibility to look
10 at things like this because I think the intent of the
11 Charter was to service the people and do what the people's
12 work. So I'm supporting it. Thank you.
13

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you for your

14 comments. Mr. Arakawa.
15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Last comments on

16 this. In the budget process when we were looking at carry
17 over savings, part of the reason that we budget the way we
18 do, program budgeting, the way we do it, and the reason
19 for carry over savings is to allow adjustments to be made
20 within the budget.
21

When we expend all of that and we don't have

22 flexibility and you pretty much going on line item every
23 dollar is accounted for and must be spent and you don't
24 have flexibility built into the budget, it jeopardizes
25 this entire community. The departments are also
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1 jeopardizing in how they're doing their budget.
2

It's been a very critical part of the

3 analysis of the budget in past Councils that I've been on
4 and we've deliberately, very deliberately, tried to expand
5 the amount of carry over savings to account for
6 flexibility within the system.
7

It's not money that is put in there with the

8 intent of all of it being spent, and therefore you should
9 spend every penny to be the most prudent manager. As a
10 matter of fact, if you did that you probably being very,
11 very poor manager in the aspect of how our budgeting
12 system works. In other budgeting systems it may be
13 different. But in our budgeting system you have to build
14 in an amount of carry over savings.
15

I am very concerned that when we burn all the

16 carry over savings and burn up our flexibility within the
17 system, we're going to have problems within our budget and
18 how we're going to be able to balance it. We've been able
19 to do it and balance the budget in the past because of the
20 carry over savings had been planned on. It's monies
21 that's put there for projects that you may or may not do.
22 May or may not do.
23

So that you have flexibility in not doing

24 some of those and adjusting your budget accordingly.
25 Without that, the departments will not have that
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1 flexibility. And mark my word on this, if the departments
2 come in with zero carry over savings, if they all do, the
3 next budget following this one will have a lot of problems
4 in trying to adjust because we won't have flexibility
5 built into the system.
6

It's a very critical aspect that's been

7 explained many times to us, it's a very critical aspect of
8 our budgeting system. The ability to deal with the entire
9 budget and taking care of the people's needs, our job is
10 to take care of the people's needs and being able to make
11 sure that all of those needs are being met in the most
12 expedient manner, I believe requires that we do a complete
13 analysis, not a piecemeal analysis.
14

By doing a piecemeal analysis we're doing

15 here in granting things on a one-by-one basis rather than
16 looking at the totality, we may be fulfilling one need.
17 The priority of that need, again, may not shore up under
18 the evidence that other needs are even more critical than
19 this particular one need. And that is my concern in being
20 able to do this.
21

So I still will be voting no against this

22 measure. Thank you. I call for the question.
23

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa. Mr.

24 Molina.
25

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I support Mr.

1 Arakawa's call for the question also.

79

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much. Before

2

3 the Chair calls for the question, the Chair will make one
4 comment. And I'd just like to share with you that there
5 are programs which only the County provides and the
6 Prosecuting Attorney is one department and one program
7 that only the County provides to the whole community. The
8 State doesn't provide Prosecuting Attorneys. The County
9
10

does.
So it's only we provide the police and the

11 fire. So I would hope that you would look at core
12 services requirements of the Charter for providing
13 specifically charged mandated programs to the County in
14 the light that it should be and it's a required service of
15 this County to provide.
16

I appreciate all of the members concern of

17 the timing as in regards to the upcoming budget submittal
18 from the Mayor. However, the Chair's position is that I
19 believe this has enough priority and enough merit for you
20 as members of this committee to make a decision whether
21 you want to support it or not this morning. Okay.
22

Seeing none, all in favor say "aye."

23

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Aye.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA: Opposed say no.

25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Let the record show one no.

1

Councilmembers Carroll, Johnson,

VOTE: AYES:

2
3

Kane, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, and

4

Chair Hokama.

5

NOES:

CouncilmeMber Arakawa.

6

EXC.:

CouncilmeMber Tavares.

7

ABSENT:

None.

8

ABSTAIN: None.

9

MOTION CARRIED
ACTION:

10

FIRST READING of proposed bill, and
FILING of communication.

11
12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Short recess.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA: Short recess till 9:55.

14

(gavel)

15

RECESS: 9:44 a.m.

16

RECONVENE: 9:55 A.M.

17 BF-54:

PROPOSED AMENDMENT RELATING TO THE ISSUANCE

18

OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS (COUNTYWIDE

19

SERVICE CENTER - $700,000) (C.C. No. 01-30)

20

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, let's go. The Council's

21 Committee on Budget and Finance will reconvene.
22

Members, at this time may I direct your

23 attention to item 54 which is the proposed amendment
24 relating to the issuance of general obligation bonds. In
25 particular $700,000.00 for a Countywide Service Center.

1
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As you know this is a continuation of our

2 meeting of February 13th of this year when we deferred
3 this item for additional discussion and comments. We have
4 this morning Mr. Wes Lo, and just as a reminder, members,
5 you do have a copy of the November 20 minutes of last year
6 regarding discussions on the lease.
7

The lease is not the item before the

8 committee. The funding for the improvements is before the
9 committee. So if I just share that as a reminder to the
10 committee members. At this time Mr. Wes Lo, Director of
11 Finance, if you would care to start off the discussion.
12

MR. LO: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Council

13 members, what I'd like to do is first sort of make a comment
14 towards some questions I had received via transmittal from
15 the Budget Chair.
16

I received them late Thursday afternoon. I

17 had to fly to Honolulu on Friday. So we have completed,
18 to the best ability, most of the questions here and we are
19 going to be transmitting them today. So I will also be
20 speaking to some of these questions in our conversation.
21 I apologize I wasn't able to finish them sooner as it was
22 a fairly extensive list of questions.
23

Now, I'd like to quickly just go over some

24 background about the Countywide Service Center to perhaps
25 clear up some misconceptions. Sort of talk about the
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1 division of this Countywide Service Center.
2

For the record, I would like to state that the

3 Countywide Service Center was never intended to be a
4 satellite office. The whole premise of the Countywide
5 Service Center was to find a location where we could prepare
6 the financial backbone -- or I should say information
7 technology backbone and the processes to be consolidated
8 whereby we could take the services out to the outlying
9 areas and into the other community areas, via other
10 mediums, such as web enable, kiosk or even having
11 miniature satellite city offices in the outlying
12 districts, such as Lahaina, Makawao, Kihei, et cetera.
13

What we saw when we walked into this area was

14 that if you go up to Makawao, for example, you need to go
15 do your refuse payment, et cetera, or apply for a refuse
16 account, you usually would go to the highways baseyard.
17 The Department of Motor Vehicles office is not even
18 located near there. It's actually another location. And
19 also you can not even access any real property tax data up
20 in the Makawao area without calling down to the Real
21 Property Tax Division.
22

So as part of the Mayor's initiatives we

23 needed to find efficiencies and so the premise behind the
24 whole service center concept was to first get that
25 infrastructure and find efficiencies so we could take out
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1 the government service to outlying areas.
2

Also efficiencies were to make so that we

3 could expand our services without increasing body count
4 and we've been hammering away as much as possible. It is
5 Finance's opinion that if we can expend money in the form
6 of a computer and equipment, which is a one time expense,
7 and not -- and gain efficiencies by not having to hire a
8 body, then that would be the more preferable way to go.
9 Obviously we're definitely watching our body count overall
10 in the County.
11

So in any event, we had some problems at the

12 motor vehicle section, the real property tax section, as
13 you have heard by testimony last -- I think a couple weeks
14 ago. In the Department of Motor Vehicles area we're very
15 archaic processes -- I'm going to spare you folks, I
16 actually had some pictures taken of the area down there,
17 and you heard before, but some of the process they have
18 down there is they manually have card records for all the
19 signatures, et cetera. They actually go and purge them
20 when they're pulling a file. There's no way to
21 electronically or manually do that. So we saw that there
22 are tons of these type of manual processes that needed to
23 be fixed.
24

Also we saw the problems with the lines at

25 the Motor Vehicle Registration and driver's licensing
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1 sections had some -- definitely different cycles. The
2 Motor Vehicle Registration at the end of the month you'll
3

see lines 45, 50 minutes. Driver's license side is a

4 steady flow. We have clerks on both sides of the stadium.
5 We could not even try to combine their work flow or
6 workload because of the physical dislocation of that. So
7 we're unable to make efficiencies within that process, et
8

cetera.

9

So obviously we looked at that area and we

10 saw a tremendous ability to consolidate functions and
11 provide better services without adding bodies.
12

In the area of real property tax, as you know

13 we're forced into acquiring a new real property tax
14 system. Again, we saw that as an opportunity. However,
15 we're going from a paper based society to a electronic
16 based society. There are different needs, different
17 set-ups for the equipment.
18

So when we looked at that we said, well, if

19 we can consolidate these functions and start taking a look
20 at other ways of -- to consolidate things in a back shop
21 setting to provide the ability to have better customer
22 service at different locations. That was the primary
23 objective.
24

So, the customer service center is really

25 going to serve two main things. One is that it will
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1 provide the ability in a central area for centralized
2 collection and information area. But more importantly it
3 is providing us a backbone to do a variety of other things
4 that the satellite office is and even beyond I think.
In any event, so we've started down this path

5

6 and we started to looking into business processes and our
7 computer implementations. We started looking for space.
8 And in my response, in response to some prior committee
9 request, I did talk briefly about some of the locations we
10
11

looked at.
We initially looked at the Kaahumanu Center.

12 We actually were offered a very lucrative deal. I guess
13 I'd say I think they were thinking of charging us, I
14 believe it was no rent, and just paying for the common
15 area maintenance for 2,600 square feet. We looked at that
16 space and said the only thing we could possibly do there
17 is add a satellite location there.
18

If we were to add a satellite location there

19 and not change any of the processes and not have any of
20 the technical infrastructure, all we would have done is
21 added bodies. We would have actually physically had to
22 call back to the Motor Vehicles Registration or whatever
23 and have somebody else do the work on that side and fax
24 the work back. So we found out that -- quickly we found
25 out that a small space was not going to accomodate the
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1 needs we had. We really need to take care of the whole
2 backbone of this whole system.
3

We started looking at a lot of other larger

4 spaces. For some of the Council members you know that we
5 were also in a budgetary crunch. We actually did look at
6 building a building and acquiring some properties in the
7 central area and we found it somewhat cost prohibitive.
8

So we went to a variety of different

9 locations and looked at it. And you know as always the
10 lease versus the buy situation is a complex and a tricky
11 situation and there is no, you know, you can't run a
12 formula and come up with the perfect answer because
13 there's too many variables involved in it. So we went
14 through several different locations and the largest
15 existing location that was available at what we feel is a
16 very, very good lease rent is the Maui Mall location.
17

In any event, this was to my understanding

18 approved by the last Council in the budget session, the
19 actual leasing of the space. We did come before this -20 before the Budget Committee at the end of last year and
21 basically to hear any objections to the space prior to
22 executing the lease. Made it fairly clear that we had the
23 authority to execute the lease.
24

So it's my understanding now that we are here

25 to discuss the $700,000.00 for the improvements. As it
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1 relates to that topic, we will be in that space for no
2 more than 700,000 -- we will not be asking for any further
3 appropriations. We're currently in design work right now.

4

We've sort of put them on hold for right now.

5

The space is going to be approximately 12,000

6 square feet. We are going to be using very, very few
7 walls, as few walls as possible, and we are looking at
8 using all modular furniture in there. In fact, some of
9 the hallways and some of dividers will be through modular
10 furniture.
11

I think in response to Ms. Tavares' questions

12 our construction manager estimated at 30, 40 percent of
13 the cost could be of -- those things could be relocated.
14 We do have to do some work on the ceilings, et cetera, and
15 providing some bathrooms, so on and so forth.
16

And basically, you know, we're still in the

17 process of programming out all the space. We've done a
18 very high level plan. We're sort of waiting for authority
19 to move forward before we spend too much money with the
20

consultants.

21
22
23

Again, with that, I'll be happy to answer any
questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Lo. Anyone

24 else? Ms. Yoshimura, any additional comments? Seeing
25 none -- Mr. Arakawa.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: First of all, Mr.

1

2 Chairman, I sent you a list of questions. I haven't
3 received any of the answers for any of the questions that
4 I sent. Could perhaps Mr. Lo explain or go through the
5 list that I sent and go through the questions?
6

MR. LO: Mr. Chair?

7

CHAIR HOKAMA: Proceed. Just a minute there,

8 Mr. Lo, before you start. The Chair did receive questions
9 from Mr. Arakawa. I believe was dated February 15th.
10 February 15th.
11

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yes.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that response in his

13 February 23rd letter to us?
MS. KOLLER: It was -- we had asked for the

14

15 questions to be submitted to the committee chair by the
16 16th, I believe, which was a Friday. We did not receive
17 the questions, Mr. Arakawa, until Monday, and that letter
18 was transmitted through the Mayor's office, I think the
19 following day which was Tuesday.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, this is the one that

20

21 you're referring to, Mr. Arakawa. That's Thursday the
22
23

15th.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Right. The -- your

24 aid is right. We were going to put it out there on the
25 15th, but we finished it too late, so it was transmitted
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1 Monday, but we did transmit it. We haven't received
2 any -CHAIR HOKAMA: And just to let you know, Mr.

3

4 Arakawa, as soon as we did get it, we started the process of
5 having it referred to Mr. Lo for response. So just to let
6 you know, we did process it upon receiving it within the
7 very next day.
8

Okay, Mr. Lo, you can answer as best you can.

9

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa, yes,

10 again this is the document I was referring to that we, I
11 actually received on Thursday afternoon and I was out of the
12 office on Friday. So I have done my best to answer as many
13 of the questions as I could in the time provided.
And if it pleases this Council, I'll go

14

15 through them, not reading the entire answer, but just
16 trying to answer, hopefully the main points.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Just do a complete.

18 Don't rush it. Do a complete answer.
19

MR. LO: The initial question was total square

20 footage requirements by all entities that will be moving
21 into the Countywide Service Center if it were selected.
22 The answer, and I will try to take up the meat in my
23
24

answers.
Our initial estimates are for 12,000 square

25 feet in this space at Woolworth's. The space requirements
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1 were based on preliminary space programming done by some
2 architects based on -3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Excuse me, Mr.

4 Chairman. Councilmember Nishiki just came over and said
5 he doesn't have a copy of the questions so he's -6

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Not the questions,

7 the answers.
8

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Or answers. The

9 answers. He's got written answers?
10

CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that going to be the

11 official transmittal middle.
12

MR. LO: It hasn't gone through the Mayor's

13 office but, yes, it's ready to go. We actually finished it
14 late last night. I'd be happy to -15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Could we get copies

16 of that so we can look at it?
17

CHAIR HOKAMA: One second, members, please.

18 One second. If that's not going to be your official
19 transmittal, I prefer not to have it because I don't want
20 what you tell the committee today and what is send to the
21 committee two different things. If that's going to be the
22 Administration's official response, fine. But I will not
23 have two answers given to the same question.
24

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, these, as you know from a

25 protocol standpoint, these -- all transmittals are
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1 reviewed by the Mayor and/or Managing Director prior to
2 transmittal and they have not reviewed these at this time.
3

CHAIR HOKAMA: So, again, Mr. Lo, if you prefer

4 not to hand it out, it's a decision you're going to need to
5 make.
6

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, if you would be so kind to

7 provide us with probably maybe a two, three minute recess,
8 so we can get the approval to transmit this at this point
9 in time we can run up.
10

CHAIR HOKAMA: Short recess.

11

RECESS: 10:10 a.m.

12

RECONVENE: 10:15 a.m.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA: (gavel) The Budget and

14 Finance Committee will reconvene at this time. Members,
15 presented to you during recess was a official transmittal
16 from the Office of the Mayor in regards to Mr. Wes Lo's
17 communication back to the committee regarding responses to
18 some of the questions posed through this committee Chair's
19 request. So at this time the Chair will call a ten-minute
20 recess for your perusal and at which time the Chair would
21 then make a decision on how we will proceed with the rest
22 of the agenda. Ten-minute recess. (gavel)
23

RECESS: 10:16 a.m.

24

RECONVENE: 10:29 a.m.

25

CHAIR HOKAMA: (gavel) Council's Committee
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1 on Budget and Finance will reconvene. Members, you do
2 have a handout dated February 27th through the Office of
3 the Mayor for the Department of Finance and Mr. Lo as
4 Director of Finance with attachments.
Again, may I just, as a reminder, that the

5

6 lease is not what is on the topic of the agenda. The
7 $700,000.00 request for the cost of the improvements to
8 the center is what is before the committee. So please, as
9 best we can, stay within the parameters of the request of
10 the 700,000 and how the department is going to spend that
11

$700,000.00 of improvement.

12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA: Questions. Okay, we're going

14 to go left to right right down the row, because I think
15 everybody has a concern or a question. So we'll start
16 with you, Mr. Kane, and then work our way down to Mr.
17 Nishiki.
18

COUNCILMEMBER KANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

19

My question will be referencing the questions

20 I guess submitted by my colleague Mr. Arakawa, and I would
21 hope, Mr. Chairman, that we would follow the agenda, and
22 that the request seeks approval for leasehold improvements
23 of the Countywide Service Center, and therefore, there are
24 several questions which I think are very important to
25 discuss at a point in time.
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However, I think in the best interest

1

2 of the Sunshine Law, because there are questions in here
3 that deal with a question that has already been answered.
4 And that is, and I'll make reference to the first
5 question, at the tail-end of the first question. It says
6 if Woolworth's is selected. Woolworth's has already been
7

selected.
This body in the previous term authorized the

8

9 administration to execute the lease, and so the question
10 is already moot as far as many of the questions listed in
11

here.
So I would hope that the Chair and the body

12

13 would not delve into questions which again I will
14 emphasize I think are very important questions, but
15 because they're not listed on the agenda for today's
16 discussion, at some point these questions should be, and
17 it seems like a lot of 'em they don't have full answers
18 and maybe we can have a discussion later, but until such
19 time we have them listed on an agenda that the public can
20 come in and participate, I will have a problem if we start
21 delving into this because to me it shows that we're just
22 ignoring what the law is and just looking for a desired
23
24

result.
And I am not going to participate in that

25 type of discussion. I am very interested in all of these
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1 questions and answers, but I will only, in my mind,
2 participate with the ones that are listed on today's
3 agenda and talk about those only.
4

So, Mr. Chairman, those are my comments and

5 as we go through the questions, if the Chair feels that
6 something, if you allow some discussion on a question that
7 I feel is outside the parameters, then I will make my
8 objections known at that time. Thank you.
9

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, thank you very much, Mr.

10 Kane, for your comments.
11

Again, the Chair will make a ruling if and

12 when we do reach that bridge. Until then the members will
13 have the ability to express their comments on the item
14 stated out on the public agenda.
15

Okay, next person is Mr. Arakawa.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, you

17 know I submitted a list of questions and I also asked that
18 when I did submit the questions, if you would look at my
19 questions, you will see that I ask that this be duly noted
20 so that it would be properly noticed so that we could
21 discuss these questions on the agenda. If this is not
22 proper, Mr. Kane believes that the notice has not been
23 posted properly, I would ask that the committee defer this
24 item until it can be posted properly on the agenda,
25 because I believe that we should have the proper

1
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discussion.

2

Mr. Kane is absolutely right. We don't want

3 to violate the Sunshine Law and because I did make that
4 request, I would assume that anything that I have on here
5 was posted properly so that we could have the complete
6 discussion.
7

Now, in my mind, the allocation of

8 $700,000.00 as an expenditure is a very big expenditure
9 and it needs to be looked at in the totality of
10 justification as to why we would want to expend it. Just
11 because the prior Council approved a lease, doesn't mean
12 that we should go ahead and expend all of these funds.
13

In looking over the minutes of the last

14 meeting that -- or the meeting that was sent to us, there
15 was also reference to the fact that the Administration
16 before they came back would come out with a complete floor
17 plan, ground plan, blue prints, for the proposed
18 discussion, and would be able to explain to us exactly
19 what was planned for this project, and I have not received
20 any of that yet, even though I requested all the
21 informtion that was available.
22

Now, if the intent of the Chair is to not

23 allow any of the discussion as to the justification behind
24 what we're doing, whether that's the appropriate place
25 with the appropriate expenditure of $700,000.00 or not,
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1 then I ask for a deferral of this item until you -- the
2 Chair can post this in the legal proper way, because I
3 believe Mr. Kane's suggestion is absolutely correct.
4

Now, Councilmember Nishiki just gave me this

5 copy, and one of the conditions was that -- and I'll read
6 section 3.05, payment contingent on County Council
7 approval. This is part of that lease agreement. Payment
8 is contingent upon the approval. The payment of all
9 amounts owed by lessee under this lease shall be
10 contingent upon the appropriation of funds by the Maui
11 County Council and if sufficient funds are not
12 appropriate, the lease will be terminated.
13

So there is no real tie in that it requires

14 this Council to follow last -- the last Council's approval
15 of the lease. And, quite frankly, on a lot of this, my
16 discussions with the public, people in business on this
17 particular lease, I find that the general comment is that
18 this is a bad lease. We are getting into a situation
19 whereby we will be discussing the $700,000.00 as it is an
20 appropriate expenditure because I don't believe it's an
21 appropriate expenditure because the lease space that we
22 are requiring which the Administration is saying 12,000
23 square feet, may not be what we really need for the
24 function of what we want to accomplish.
25

If we could get along with serving the public
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1 with the smaller area and putting much of the facilities
2 into an area that is not as expensive, not necessarily
3 just business, if we could do this on an area that the
4 County owned for the most part, putting all the
5 $700,000.00 worth of improvements into a facility that we
6 already have or that we could construct for our own, that
7 may be more beneficial. But that's part of the discussion
8 that needs to occur.
9

And I would like the Chairman to rule on that

10 because I do not want to be ruled out of order for not
11 sticking to the agenda. And again, if the agenda is not
12 appropriately worded and phrased and publicly noticed,
13 then I would ask that this item be deferred until we can
14 do that.
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for your

16 comments and your request, Mx. Arakawa. For the members'
17 information, the posting for this committee agenda today
18 was done as stated by rules by 12:00 o'clock noon on
19 Tuesday, the 20th. Staff has informed me that they have,
20 and I believe they time stamp it, that this was received
21 after the posting deadlines. So it did not make to become
22 part of this agenda for discussion today.
23

However, the Chair did continue to forward

24 the requests by Mr. Arakawa to the appropriate department
25 and department head Mr. Lo so that he may be best able to
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1 respond to all questions as regards to this request item.
2

Okay. Next, Mr. Carroll, any comments?

3

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: You haven't give me a

4 ruling yet as to whether we'll be able to discuss this
5

'cause I have a lot more questions to ask. I'm not done

6 with my questions.
7

CHAIR HOKAMA: My ruling, Mr. Arakawa, Is

8 that as long as you stay within the parameters of the
9 posted agenda, the Chair will continue to allow any
10 member, including yourself, to ask questions and have
11 comments.
12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So the questions that

13 I have listed over here are according to the posted
14 agenda?
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: I think some of it is kind of

16 stretching for myself. Things like your question number
17 three. Listing of all County properties. I consider that
18 outside the scope. Number five.
19

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's already in the

20 material that we have, so I would consider the material
21 that we have as part of the agenda item.
22

CHAIR HOKAMA: So, again, Mr. Arakawa, you

23 can continue proceed, and the Chair will advise you
24 whether or not I believe you're exceeding the parameters
25 of the agenda.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So item one, Mr.

2 Lo, the total square footage requirements by all entities.
3 In the last committee meeting when we had -- when we were
4 discussing this item, the two services that you have in the
5 War Memorial Gym complex have already stated that they need
6 over 12,000 square feet.
7

What is your floor plan? Because that was

8 the requirement of you to produce a floor plan. Could we
9 see a floor plan describing whether or not this, for
10 instance, will be adequate to meet your needs if and when
11 you get our approval?
12

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilman Arakawa, in

13 response to your first question, yes, when we first
14 discussed the space requirements from both the division
15 managers I think they both actually wanted 10,000 square
16 feet a piece.
17

We actually went through a space programming

18 exercise with an architect and have begun working very
19 diligently on the equipment and furniture needs, and we
20 believe, at this point in time, that we will be able to
21 fit in the space. It may not be as luxurious and as open
22 as perhaps they prefer, but in discussions with the
23 architects and the space programming people and working
24 with the consultants who have been doing the equipment cut
25 sheets, et cetera, we feel that this space is adequate.
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1 We, again, do not want to take more space than is
2 required. We are trying to become a low cost provider in
3

this area.
As it relates to the plans and specs, I,

4

5 based on the prior conversations, we have halted spending
6 any further money with our architects. We do have some
7 preliminary drawings. I did not bring them with me, which
8 we have sort of worked on the layout of the exterior and
9 the entryway and the general flow, work flows of the, the
10 various services, et cetera. I will be happy to transmit
11 that to you.
The current drawings that we have we do need

12

13 to do further space plannings area. I did not realize in
14 designing areas is a very extensive process, so we
15 actually have a construction person working with us.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Then, Mr. Chairman,

16

17 you know, that was one of the requirements that was made
18 of the department before the $700,000.00 would come back
19 for approval, according to the minutes of the last meeting
20
21

that I read.
And I think it's incumbent on us to find out

22 exactly what the department is planning to do for the
23 expenditure. What they really need the space for. What
24 we're paying for.
25

Now, he stated a lot of sort of ambiguous
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1 things. Like we'd be putting computers on it. We'd be
2 putting people in their, modular furniture, but we really
3 have no diagram to understand exactly what we're trying to
4 accomplish with this space.
Not it could very well be that the computers

5

6 do not need to go into that space and we do not need to
7 have that expenditure. It could very well be that many of
8 the personnel that are currently housed at the War
9 Memorial Gym do not need to move into the space, so we do
10 not need to reconstruct all the furniture and a
11 $700,000.00 appropriation may be much over what we need to
12

do.
But I believe that the department is, you

13

14 know, they committed to making that information available.
15 So I think if the department has it, and he'ssaying he
16 has sketches of it, it's incumbent upon them to produce
17 that so we could do the proper analysis as to whether or
18 not we know what they're actually trying to do. How can
19 we make a decision? How can we analyze unless we know
20 what they're actually trying to do? To this point I don't
21
22

see that.
As far as the total space, you know, they've

23 said that in the current facility where they have, they
24 don't have enough public access. It's too tight, too
25 cramped. What is the exact requirement of the department
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1 for the people that are going to be facing the public?
2 What is the exact space requirement?
3

So, in your $700,000.00 appropriate, how are

4 you going to create the area that the public is going to
5 be accessing, and how are you separating that from what
6 the normal operations of the department is where you don't
7 want it to be so public offices and such things?
8

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Lo, can you respond to Mr.

9 Arakawa's question, please?
10

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa, I

11 think it's an unfair example to -- well, I do not feel it
12 was an ambiguous statement. We are looking at modular
13 furniture and I'm not sure of the ambiguity.
14

Also, as it relates to trying to compare the

15 existing space with the new space, I find it would be -- I
16 think the -- it is going to be a totally different
17 operations. We are going to have a customer service
18 counter which has cashiering. We also are going to have a
19 similar area where the Motor Vehicle Registration is able
20 to do their process, et cetera.
21

In general there will be some counter tops.

22 I think the actual effectiveness and efficiencies gained
23 by a consolidated space is the open area where people and
24 processes are co-located to -- so that they can be
25 cross-trained under different abilities.

1
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So I'm not sure, I'm not sure if you're

2 actually wanting to

see

the entire drawn out space and the

3 actual work flows prior to the 700,000 being appropriated.
4 I think that there will be a substantial amount of money
5 to prepare that amount of money when we actually do not
6 even have that appropriation. As any architect, if you've
7 ever worked with an architect before, that's a fairly good
8 sum of money that we have to spend on that.
9

However, we can provide just the basic

10 drawings, which does not even have -- it doesn't have the
11 actual physical location. It has a general layout of the
12 customer service area, conference rooms, walls, bathrooms,
13 et cetera.
14

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa.

16

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: If I may continue

17 this. It's very unprofessional, I believe, of the
18 department to come in here unprepared when this was a
19 requirement that was requested from the previous meetings
20 for them to, in order to meet the basic requirement, just
21 to come in to ask for the money.
22

Now, I'm not comparing apples to oranges when

23 I compare the work space, when I asked them what is the
24 work space. If they're going to indeed change the work
25 space requirement, all I'm asking for is what exactly are
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1 you trying to accomplish? What work space are you going
2 to have open? What work space are you going to have for
3 the public to be able to see? What work space do you need
4 for storage? That's part of the request.
5

It says it would mean having design plans

6 and, you know, basically you need to have that kind of
7 information available. If we're going to be analyzing
8 whether or not a $700,000.00 allocation is proper, how do
9 we know unless we know what we're buying?
10

It could be we're spending $700,000.00 for

11 what we could be spending $10,000.00 for. I doubt that,
12 but it could be. We don't know unless we look at it. And
13 I think that's the major flaw in all the information we
14 have right now. We don't know what we're buying.
15

Judging from what the past meeting was when

16 we were talking to the department people, they were still
17 in the conceptual stage. They didn't know what they were
18 really getting into. As a matter of fact, when we were
19 talking about needed space for the license plates, the
20 department didn't even know that -21

What they hadn't calculated in was that this

22 would be a necessary space that was needed within this
23 Woolworth complex if they were going to take it up. How
24 are you going to move a container of license plates?
25 Where are you going to keep it? You know, do you really

105
1 want to keep three storage areas worth of license plates
2 in the Woolworth's building? What are you trying to
3 accomplish?
4

And that is my questioning to you is what are

5 you really trying to accomplish that we can see that you
6 can produce for us so we know that the expenditure, the
7 $700,000.00, is going to purchase something? What is that
8 something?
9

Now it's easy to say, give us the money,

10 we'll spend it, and then we'll tell you what we did after
11 we spent it. But our job is to make sure that it's being
12 spent on something that is real. I mean these dollars are
13 real tax payer dollars. Whether it comes as part of a
14 bond float or it comes as cash, it's still real taxpayers
15 dollars that we're accountable for.
16

And I'd like to see that before we make any

17 kind of a decision. Because I think that having been
18 already requested by past Council members should have been
19 something that the department was prepared for today.
20

CHAIR HOKAMA: Your point is well taken Mr.

21 Arakawa.
22

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So, in asking for

23 the, number one, the square footage requirements on
24 question one, what is the square footage requirements, I
25 still have not gotten a satisfactory answer from Mr. Lo,
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1 and at this point I would ask that perhaps he go back and
2 come back with the diagram and exact square footage
3 requirements, with plans.
4

We can move on to question number two because

5 it's obvious that there is no answer to question number
6 one that's available today. And we're looking at -7

MR. LO: Excuse me, Mr. Chair. Councilman

8 Arakawa.
9

CHAIR HOKAMA: One second, please. Everyone,

10 one second, please. Mr. Lo, are you going to make a
11 response to Mr. Arakawa's regarding question one?
12

MR. LO: Actually somewhat in the form of a

13 question here. Just to clarify and provide some clarity to
14 the situation on what is provided. Is that Councilmember
15 Arakawa's intent that we have a thorough plans of the space
16 to take a look at prior to proceeding?
17

COUNCILM•MBER ARAKAWA: Absolutely.

18

MR. LO: So, I guess, just from a policy

19 standpoint, you know, typically, you know from, you know,
20 this is going beyond I think most typical construction
21 projects in providing that thorough detail. However, we
22 can prepare that. It's going to take some time and will
23 push us further back on our schedule. But I just wanted
24 to get some clarity to the situation there.
25

COUNCILMENBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman.

1
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, Mr. Arakawa.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: You know as a former

3 supervisor for the treatment plant County facility,
4 whenever we construct something, we generally have plans
5 drawn up and we generally have quite a lot of of details
6 built into those plans.
7

It would seem that that's normal process.

8 It's not an overstretch of what the requirements should
9 be. Now, unless you've changed a lot of the method of
10 operation, now, you know, when you're making plans, they
11 should be fairly detailed, and I think that's not
12 requesting something out of the ordinary.
13

I know when we did the construction plans we

14 knew pretty much where every nut and bolt was supposed to
15 be and there were detailed diagrams where every girder was
16 supposed to be what we were trying to accomplish, you
17 know, what the motor RPMs are. There's a lot of detail
18 that generally goes into this kind of plan.
19

So I don't think I'm asking for anything

20 that's out of the question. As part of the normal process
21 of preparing for something like this, if you're going to
22 move into a facility and you're going to come in and say
23 we need $700,000.00, there needs to be some kind of
24 justification to say why we need $700,000.00, and how can
25 you justify it unless you know what you're trying to do?

1
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You could be needing a million and a half

2 dollars. We don't know. It could be that if you don't
3 know what you're doing, you may need change orders that
4 cost the County a lot of money, because once you get
5 whatever approvals you have, you have to change what those
6 are because they haven't been thought out right and the
7 County pays a lot in change orders.
8

So, you know, as far as item number one, I

9 think that it's incumbent upon the Administration to do
10 their homework and come prepared, and I see this as being
11 very unprepared.
12

If I could move on to question number two, or

13 would you prefer the other Council members to ask the
14 questions and we can come back?
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. If you please, Mr.

16 Arakawa. I know you have your list of related questions.
17

Mr. Carroll, have you any comments at this

18 time regarding this item? I'm just trying to get a sense
19 of the members so that we can -- I can make the best
20 recommendation.
21

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.

22

Yes, I do. I kind of like the idea of the

23 location, and I think they need to move it. However, as
24 the two previous Council members have stated, there's too
25 many unanswered questions. I can not in good faith okay
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1 something like this without having more knowledge of how
2 the money is to be spent.
3

Everybody else that comes before this

4 Council, I would say, would never be approved with the
5 information that we have available to us today. And I
6 feel that it would be appropriate to defer this item until
7 the concerns that they have addressed and I'm addressing
8 now are met. Thank you.
9

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your comments

10 Mr. Carroll.
11

Mr. Kawano, any comments?

12

COUNCILMEMBER KAWANO: Mr. Chairman, in

13 sticking with the agenda, I prefer to hold my comments,
14 Mr. Chairman, as far as that goes.
15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.

16

Ms. Johnson.

17

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I had just some

18 general areas of question. I also believe right now, and
19 perhaps some of the questions could be answered here by
20 Wesley, but just to see some kind of a breakdown of the
21 expenditures or projected expenditures.
22

And are the monies already expended? As I

23 understand, we've already entered into the lease and we
24 are paying rent.
25

Are those expended funds actually a part of
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1 this 700,000 or are those monies that were appropriated
2 already?
My third part is, if we do not appropriate

3

4 the $700,000.00 in general obligation bonds for the
5 center, will we still be subjected to the termination
6 penalty of $61,693.00?
And my fourth question is, are the

7

8 association dues of $420.00 a month and any monthly common
9 area maintenance charges or special assessments to be paid
10

from the $700,000.00?

11

Those are my main four questions right now.

12

CHAIR HOKAMA: Very good questions. I can

13 see you're experienced in going over contracts.
Mr. Lo, do you have a response for Ms.

14

15 Johnson's questions particularly regarding the payment of
16 rent?
MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Johnson, I'm

17

18 not sure if I will get these in the proper order if I can
19 remember all the questions.
The 700,000 is being set aside only for the

20

21 design and interior improvements. The actual CAM or
22 common area maintenance, the merchants association fees,
23 et cetera, are being paid out of the 200,000 that was
24 appropriated by the prior budget, the prior budget, et
25

cetera.

1
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In regards to the, I think you asked the

2 question in regards to the lease. We have executed the
3 lease with Alexander and Baldwin. As Mr. Nishiki had
4 pointed out, there is, in substantially all of our lease
5 documents, a provision that basically holds each -- any
6 contract we sign is subject to future appropriations by
7 another Budget Committee.
8

So in essence if the -- although we signed

9 the lease in the next budget year, if money was not
10 appropriated for the lease rent, et cetera, legally we
11 would be able to walk away from the lease. Legally I
12 believe we would.
13

I do suspect that morally there are some

14 obligations there, and also, you know, it will be tough if
15 we started walking away from lease documents. However,
16 legally, I think it's a normal -- I think Corporation
17 Counsel does insert that language in there. I'm not sure
18 if I can remember the remaining questions.
19

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: One is just about the

20 termination penalty of the roughly $62,000.00?
21

MR. LO: Yeah, the termination penalty was not

22 contemplating that we would break the lease after one year
23 obviously. The termination penalty was at Council Budget
24 Committee's -- last year's Budget Committee's wishes that we
25 shorten the term of the lease, and in discussions with
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1 Alexander and Baldwin, instead of going to a five year
2 lease, they maintained a 10-year lease.
They do, typically when they do some

3

4 improvements on behalf of the tenant, they usually
5 amortize those costs over a 10 year period. So the
6 termination costs would be in the event we terminated
7 after five years and it actually was a lesser amount than
8 they were intending to spend on the facade and the walls,
9 and the windows, et cetera.
10

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I guess just to

11 question one further item. Based on what you've said,
12 Wesley, am I to understand then that the improvements,
13 such as the removal of the loading dock and the things
14 that were requested, those have already been expenses that
15 were incurred by A&B?
16

MR. LO: No, they would be incurring those

17 expenses by A&B. You know, the 700,000 basically in
18 general they'll be doing the outside and we'll be doing
19

the inside.

20

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, but they have

21 not to date expended any of their own capital to make
22 those?
23

MR. LO: Not at this point in time. Not at

24 this point in time.
25

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right. That's

1 all. Thank you.
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2

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you very much.

3

Mr. Molina.

4

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Mr. Chair.

5

Question for Wes. I echo JoAnne's sentiments

6 about an expense breakdown because $700,000.00 for
7 taxpayers is an enormous expense to create a center that
8 would provide better service for the public, but I would
9 like to know what companies, if that is available, are
10 involved in this improvement request?
11

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Molina, at

12 this point in time we've been working with the architect
13 firm I believe it's 20/20 Design Group. That is the only
14 firm we've been working with at this point in time.
15

One of the problems, and perhaps it's I'm a

16 neophyte to some extent on the construction side, you need
17 to have design monies usually typically before you get
18 design monies and you actually go to the CIP. We sort of
19 made this encompassing. We are currently in the design
20 part. The consultant will be providing. We sort of
21 tell -- until we sort of find out which direction we're
22 going on this space, you know, they will be coming to us
23 with a proposal with the remainder of the design
24 consultants to do electrical engineering, so on and so
25 forth, et cetera.

1
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Obviously I'm hearing loud and clear what the

2 Council is saying regarding a breakdown of the costs. I
3 will need to -- I had planned on using part of that
4 700,000 as part of our design money to come up with those
5 amounts.
6

At this point in time I would need to expend

7 some monies to get to those levels. As Councilmember
8 Arakawa has said, he is correct. We do need to go down
9 and find out where every single nut and bolt is. That is
10 correct. However, we do need to expend some monies to get
11 there in the form of a design contract.
12

We have not talked to any construction

13 companies at this point in time because we need to have
14 the designs, and at the appropriate time we would go out
15 for bids, et cetera.
16

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And this $700,000.00

17 figure, this is a conservative estimate, ball park?
18

MR. LO: When it was initially submitted we did

19 talk -- since we didn't even have the location at the time
20 -- we did talk to some design consultants regarding
21 approximate square footage. We feel that we can get in at
22 this amount because we are not trying to build a palace.
23 We're just trying to build, you know, a functional center.
24 We're feeling that we can stay within that 700,000. We do
25 not anticipate asking for any further monies for this
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1 project.
2

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank you.

3

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Molina.

4

Mr. Nishiki.

5

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Yeah, you know, we

6 went to ask Alan's first question and then we stopped
7 because I think we wanted to stay right within the
8 parameter there. I've seen the questions expanded and I
9 just wanted to say this and I'll keep it real short.
10

I think with the kind of parameters that

11 you've set for this meeting, Mr. Chairman, we're not going
12 to be able to get the entire picture, number one.
13

I think we've heard one, two, three, I've not

14 heard the other three people say that they want a
15 deferral, but I think this is going to be important. And
16 the reason why I say this is, as Wesley talked about nuts
17

and bolts and Mike's concern for $700,000.00, I think

18 questions like does the licensing and the property tax
19 really need to be all in one place?
20

Number two, I think that there is a question

21 that we all have now. I mean Charmaine has expressed it
22 that where the location should be and on what kind of
23 property it should be on. I think it's most important.
24

We've heard from a myriad of people from the

25 outside I'm sure, not only myself, to put something that
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1 is going to be permanent on leased land with millions of
2 dollars expended, I think may be a concern, now that has
3 been raised and is valid. We've often heard
4 revitalization of Wailuku. Well, why not on the parking
5 lot up there? And to see if that can be functional. It's
6 County property. Why spend the money here in Kahului?
7

The question, again, was asked, when a

8 property was offered to us for free -- and I could see
9 that the owner there, Kaahumanu, Maui Land and Pine, I'm
10 not sure who it is -- could see the benefit of businesses
11 that are existing there to offer this for County people
12 all over the County would traverse there and eventually
13 shop at these places. Why we were not offered that for
14 free, I don't know, from A&B?
15

So for myself, yes, a deferral and looking at

16 what and truly how much we want to see put in this place,
17 perhaps we really need to relook and say, this is not
18 going to be permanent, Wesley.
19

So cut it even smaller. We'll negotiate, if

20 this is where we're going to see it be temporarily. But
21 personally myself, after listening to many people in the
22 business community say to put something like this on
23 leased land is very foolish way. We need to rethink and
24
25

relook this.
So, again, as three Council members asked for
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1 a deferral to expand the parameters of this discussion, I
2 think is most important, because I saw you at the onset
3 say, well, I'm going to make a judgment whether this can
4 be discussed or that can be discussed, but I think that
5 the lease and the money we are about to spend in pursuing
6 this lease is connected and we need more answers. So I'm
7 asking for a deferral also. Thank you.
8

Charmaine really has a lot more questions

9 also Mr. Chairman so -10

CHAIR HOKAMA: I'll not allow you to read her

11 mind.
12

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: Okay.

13

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, I appreciate your

14 comments Mr. Nishiki, and again Ms. Tavares is excused due
15 you to her illness.
16

Not to cut any other comments from the

17 committee, however, the Chair's sense is that we'd like
18 more detailed information from the department, and as
19 such, the Chair would agree that we should provide them
20 with sufficient time to get the responses that is
21 obviously needed by this committee for a good decision to
22 be made in the near future.
23

So, if there's no objections, the Chair, and

24 I will recognize you committee members, I will be
25 requesting a deferral of this item.
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1

Mr. Arakawa.

2

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Mr. Chairman, you

3 know, I have a list of questions, and even though we defer
4 this, perhaps we should go over some of these items so
5 that the department can be prepared when they come back to
6 present to us. I think that if we defer and we don't ask
7 the questions, we come back the next time and they won't
8 know what the questions were, and might not be able to get
9 the proper type of answers.
10

So before you defer, I'd like to go over some

11 of these questions so that I can get a clear understanding
12 and perhaps the department can get a clear understanding
13 of what I'm thinking of.
14

Also, when you defer this and when you relist

15 it, please list it so that we can discuss the lease
16 arrangements on this as well, because that's very critical
17

to this issue, I believe. But if, you know, I'll back up

18 and I'll ask you, will you allow me to go through some of
19 these other questions so that we can have some of the
20 discussions so that the department can be more prepared
21 when we come back next time?
22

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Arakawa, do you feel that

23 the questions you presented in written form that was
24 referred to the Department of Finance need any more
25 clarification?

1
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I think some of them

2 do, yes, Mr. Chairman. And we can go over some of them,
3 because I think it's critical for us to understand. Like
4 in question number two, you're listing Motor Vehicle
5 Registration, driver's licensing, real property tax
6 services, the new cashiering functions, the County
7 collection real property tax, refuse, landfill, the last
8 time there was mention of water department, commercial
9 sewer fees, landfill receiveables, what I'd like to
10 expound on in this question is how much of this is going
11 to be computerized, so that when someone comes to the
12 front desk if it were a satellite city office or it were
13 here, how much of that would already be computerized so
14 individual people could react to it?
15

In part of your presentation, Mr. Lo, you said

16 we're trying to modernize everything so that we can limit
17 the amount of employees that we have handling this. If we
18 cut down the number of employees that we have by
19 modernizing it, do we still have the space requirements?
20 That's where this particular question is going. This is
21 why I'm asking.
22

I'd like to ask why and what exactly is going

23 to be trying to accomplish, and how are you going to
24 accomplish this with the new computerized system? Because
25 part of that expense we need to look at is going to be,
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1 can we now justify the same amount of space that you
2 requiring for all the people that you're listing when you
3 yourself said you're going to be cutting down the number
4 of employees because we're going to be minimizing the task
5 that they need to do. The number of employees required to
6 do these tasks, you're going to be cutting back on that,
7 or am I mistaken on how you're phrasing so the
8 computerization will not cut back on the requirement for
9 employees? Because I see you're looking around kind of
10 puzzled. That's what I heard and if you could explain
11
12

that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, Mr. Arakawa, I

13 appreciate you trying to bring some clarity to your areas
14 of concern. The Chair is going to ask every member who
15 would like specific detailed answers from the department
16 to send it in writing. And to expedite it, the Chair
17 would ask that you send the communication directly to the
18 department via the Mayor and the Chair will get a copy of
19 responses that is sent back to each member.
20

I think we can save a couple of days of

21 transmittal time doing it that way, and I would like the
22 department to be able to specifically answer your specific
23 questions in detail to the best of their ability so that
24 we can hopefully make -- get the information to make the
25 right decision in the future. Okay. That's the Chair's

1 comment at this time.
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2

Yes, Mr. Arakawa.

3

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So you don't want me

4 to go through these and pick out and get the department to
5 respond to some of these at this meeting? You want to do
6 it all on the deferred meeting?
7

CHAIR HOKAMA: I prefer to defer this items,

8 Mr. Arakawa.
9

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, when we

10 reschedule the meeting what, again, I'm requesting and
11 your acknowledgment of the fact, that we do discuss some
12 of the lease arrangements as part of the $700,000.00 in
13 trying to decide whether that's in the right track or not,
14 because whether or not this lease is good is part of the
15 consideration.
16

Now, in my discussion with other people, for

17 instance, as to whether or not this is a good lease, I've
18 been told that it's a terrible lease, and there are
19 reasons why I've been told it's a terrible lease. If you
20 look at Kaahumanu Center lease where you're looking at
21 almost zero for everything, including the common areas,
22 this lease where we're paying for all of that, it may be
23 better off for us not to do the project in this area
24 because of the cost.
25

So putting $700,000.00 into an area where
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1 we're probably not having the best lease contract over
2 time will be an even worse expenditure, and in that
3 respect I'd like to be able to bring that in to the
4 discussion because it's very critical to what we're
5 having.
6

You know, I've been told basically that this

7 is a political pay off just to be able to get A&B to do
8 something with this area. Over three years they haven't
9 been able to lease it. And if the lease arrangements for
10 the other areas like Longs and Star Market in here as
11 anchors, if the comparables for what they are paying for
12 ground space and what they are paying for their businesses
13 is comparable to what the County is paying, you know,
14 those are the kind of things I think we need to look at in
15 the longer term and see whether they are comparable or
16 not, as to whether or not this is really a beneficial
17 lease to the County, because my understanding of this is
18

it's a terrible lease.

19

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your opinion and

20 comments, Mr. Arakawa. Okay, no objections, this item is
21 deferred.
22

NO OBJECTION: Councilmembers Arakawa,

23 Carroll, Johnson, Kane, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Chair
24 Hokama.
25

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

1

BF-52:
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

2

(C.C. No. 01-28)

3

CHAIR HOKAMA: None, so ordered. Members,

4 the last item for today, and I think we can just make it
5 by 12 noon, is a presentation and an overview of the
6 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report or the CAFR. It is
7 something that Committee Member Tavares had great interest
8 of and had requested, was one of the various members of
9 this committee had requested a briefing on this. I
10 believe this will assist us in our budget review and
11 deliberations in the very near future.
So at this time, Mr. Lo, if you need a short

12

13 recess to set up or -14

(Inaudible talking).

15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, members, Mr. Lo

16 also have a handout for you of the hard copy. So Tamara
17 at this time will be handing out the hard copy for you.
MR. LO: Sorry, Mr. Chairman, we need a short

18
19
20

recess.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, short recess subject to

21 the call of the Chair.
22

RECESS: 11:15 a.m.

23

RECONVENE: 11:16 a.m.

24

CHAIR HOKAMA: (gavel) Okay, Council,

25 Committee on Budget and Finance will reconvene. At this

1 time Mr. Wes Lo, Director of Finance.
2
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MR. LO: At Councilmember Tavares' request she

3 wanted me to see if I could have a brief presentation before
4 the budget to tie the budget ordinance, the budget proposal,
5 the quarterly report and the comprehensive annual financial
6 report together.
7

That was no small task and I will try to go

8 through it as fast as possible. It does get somewhat
9 complex.
10

I have provided in front of you actually that

11 PowerPoint demonstration, I will be using a pointer to
12 illustrate a few points here, but I'll try to go through
13 this as fast as possible.
14

The purpose of this presentation again is to

15 talk about the budget and I know that there's a wide
16 variety of the understandings of the budget and the budget
17 process here, so if you could bear with me while I go
18 through some of these items.
19

I will go through the general premises of

20 budgeting, background of the budget document, and then
21 also give some background on the Quarterly Report and the
22 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
23

Okay, general premises. The general fund was

24 the original fund that was created, and whenever
25 government was started, and this is the fund that takes
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1 care of all general governmental expenses.
As things got more complicated they decided

2

3 to segregate the funds, et cetera. So as you can see the
4 highway fund was created by the Hawaii Revised Statutes
5 and it was using various revenue sources to pay for
6 certain things related to highways, and there was sewer
7 and solid waste funds were created by the Maui County
8 Code, so on and so forth, and there are some smaller funds
9 which I won't get into too much detail.
Okay. The special revenue funds are for

10

11 specific purposes. The highway fund, again, is for public
12 roads. The sewer fund is for waste water systems; solid
13 waste is for refuse, landfill and recycling; and you can
14 refer to them in your County Code or HRS.
15

The reason I wanted to talk a little bit

16 about the general and the special funds is just some
17 fairly simple concepts here. General fund can be used for
18 general governmental expenditures. We always -- typically
19 when a special fund is short of monies, we can use
20 transfers from the general fund to help subsidize special
21 funds. This is typically where your money is and your
22 flexibility is when you have excess cash in the general
23
24

fund.
Now, the special funds right here are

25 restricted by, if you look at the HRS and the Maui County
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1 Code, they have to be used either for public roads, sewer,
2 waste water, et cetera. So, the problem we have here is
3 if your sewer fund or solid waste fund is running with a
4 lot of extra cash, et cetera, it is not an automatic that
5 it can be transferred back to the general fund. So that's
6 a real distinct point that we need to make sure that you
7 understand, the general fund monies can go to the special
8 funds. It's much harder for the special funds to go back
9 to the general fund.
Okay, another of the general premises as we

10

11 get started in the budget process is, again, the balanced
12 budget concept, and I'm going to go over real quickly on
13
14

this part.
Again, the Charter states that estimated

15 revenues, proposed expenditures, and total appropriations
16 for the ensuing fiscal year shall be equal in amount. In
17 other words, revenues equals appropriations. The key
18 point here and I think several of the Council members are
19 very aware of this is that based on this, if you were to
20 accurately forecast everything, you would spend everything
21 that you have in every year. I mean in a perfect world.
22

So because of that, and we know that we don't

23 always receive revenues that we expect to receive and
24 sometimes expenses go higher than we expect, we need to be
25 conservative in the budget process, otherwise you won't be
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1 able to withstand any, you know, fluctuation the budget.
2

Okay. The evolution of the budget. I think

3 up until, I'm not mistaken, '94, '95, we were under a line
4 item budget process. Line item budget is a very strict
5 control. It provides a basically the hands-on process
6 would be sort of given to the Council and the approving
7 authority where every single item would be budgeted.
8

So you would say the cost for this microphone

9 is $5.00 and this is how much you can spend on it, et
10 cetera. Line item budget provides very good fiscal
11 controls, but it's very inflexible, and it doesn't allow
12 management, obviously, to sort of change and grow with,
13 you know, the program, et cetera.
14

Around 1995, if I'm not mistaken, it was

15 changed over to a program budget. The premise of a
16 program budget is that the funding of a program is tied to
17 it's effectiveness and efficiencies. I guess the ultimate
18 program budget would be where there basically we would
19 have one number. We would have, let's say for example,
20 100 million dollars and you would have a list of things
21 that you expected delivered for that. That would be the
22 ultimate in a program budget, and, you know, that's sort
23 of the direction we're heading. Obviously we're not going
24 to be at that level at this point in time.
25

I think the next step to the budgeting
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1 process is something called the performance based budget.
2 I think you'll be hearing probably a lot about that. I
3 know several members of this Council have been to
4 performance based budgeting seminars, so on and so forth.
5 In this process we've really got to determine better
6 measurements to analyze our overall goals for the process.
7

There is a subtle difference between a

8 program budget and a performance based budget. If you
9 just digress real quickly, in a program budget you usually
10 end up taking counts, et cetera. So, for example, the
11 accounts division of the Finance Department can turn
12 around, one of their counts is that they will turn around
13 any request for payment within 14 days. So you think,
14 okay, well, that's their performance. They have to do
15 that. But a performance budget takes it one step farther.
16

The problem is if the Parks Department does

17 not submit that request for payment to the Parks
18 Department for 180 days, the customer is not paid in 14
19 days. He's paid in the 180 days. So the trick of the
20 performance based budget is to start with your global
21 measurements, et cetera and sort of start flowing them
22 down, and it's a fairly complex process in determining
23 measurements.
24

Now, the Administration is working very

25 diligently on creating a performance based budget. We are
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1 doing some surveys and we are hoping within the next six
2 months we will have our -- some high level performance
3 based budgeting things. It's a very complicated process
4 to come up with the proper performance measures and to
5 find out what things to measure.
6

Okay. What you guys are going to see in this

7 budget process are basically two documents, the budget
8 proposal and the budget ordinance. The budget proposal
9 will be the sort of a thick binder with a lot of details
10 in there, and the budget ordinance is the actual approved
11 document.
12

Again, the proposal will give you lots of

13 detail, but, again, that's not -- that's not a line item
14 budget. It's just meant to give you some details on how
15 they came up with their figures.
16

This is an example of what you'll see in the

17 budget proposal. I took the liberty of showing last
18 year's budget proposal for the purchasing department. As
19 you can see here they give you some details on salaries
20 and wages, operations and equipment, and they come over
21 with the totals of actual amounts expended, so on and so
22 forth, all the way over and it comes up with your total
23 figure, et cetera.
24

Now, this is where you're going to see your

25 body counts right here, and this is where the Council will
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1 see the body counts proposed by the Administration, and
2 they sort of breakdown how they came up with their figure
3 of 239,000 for their program on this.
4

Now, when you get to the ordinance, the

5 actual approved document, this is all it will say.
6 It will have purchasing program, 239,000, and it will just
7 say provided for disbursement of salaries limited to six
8 equivalent personnel. So, again, there's a subtle
9 difference there, but you'll see a little bit different
10 documents as we move forward on this.
11

Okay. When we get -- the way that the budget

12 was set up, and it basically was to manage these programs,
13 et cetera, is the design of the budget proposal of the
14 budget ordinance has a certain format to it. So,
15 essentially, it's going to go down by departments and then
16 by programs. So, for example, it will have Finance
17 Department. It will have accounts program. It will have
18 purchasing program, so on and so forth.
19

I'm going to take one page back here. For

20 the purchasing program, although Finance Department will
21 have a much larger budget, the purchasing program is
22 limited to that amount of expenditures by the budget, by
23 your approval process. So Finance will have a much larger
24 budget, which is a combination of all the programs within
25 the Finance Department. So you will see that in, you

131
1 know, as we start going through the format of the budget.
Now, one of the things that's kind of

2

3 peculiar about doing it this way is the way it's set up,
4 again, to manage everything by program. So the purchasing
5 program, accounts program, et cetera, what the budget
6 doesn't do at this point in time is segregate things by
7
8

funds.
So, in other words, you're going to see, you

9 know, again, your Finance Department, et cetera, it
10 doesn't have a summary page where it's going to show
11 something like highway fund. It will have it specifically
12 in the departments for the highway fund, but there will be
13 no summary page. We are trying to see if we can
14 incorporate that into the budget now, but the historical
15 document doesn't segregate it by funds.
16

The other thing is there are the two main

17 parts of the budget are the operating budget which you'll
18 see in the beginning of the thing, and then followed by
19 the capital budget.
20

There are some other items in the budget that

21 you will see and that's relating to grants that are
22 typically passed through the County, et cetera. It's
23 something called revolving funds. Revolving funds are
24 things where money is typically coming in from some source
25 and it's expended and typically it's repatriated back into
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1 the funds, et cetera.
2

I'm not going to get into too much detail at

3 this time, but you may have questions as we move through
4 the budget.
5

Okay. Just some of the differences in it.

6 The budget proposal gives some historical detail on the
7 revenue side of what's happening and I'll show you some
8 examples, but it'll give you your revenue sources that
9 shows what's happened over the last three years and what
10 was budgeted, et cetera. They'll also have some summary
11 of some of the major revenue sources such as real property
12 tax, transit accomodation tax, field tax, so on so forth.
13

The budget ordinance does not provide that

14 background. It simply states the estimated revenues for
15 the coming year. Again, neither document in its current
16 form provides a breakdown by funds in the revenue arena.
17

This is what you're going to see in the

18 budget proposal on the revenue side. You'll see you have
19 your real property tax, interfund transfers, so on and so
20 forth, and it shows you your various, you know, various
21 years you're going to see of actual budget and estimated
22 in what you're budgeting for the new year.
23

As you can see here, let's say charges for

24 current services, there is no breakdown by fund in this
25 document at this stage right now. It is incorporated into
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1 the budget document, and we are trying to see if we can
2 provide something that makes some sense where you can look
3 at things by fund.
4

When you get to your ordinance it's just

5 going to list all your items straight down like this, you
6 know, so on and so forth. In fact, this is the only page
7 in the current budget ordinance that really refers to your
8 revenues, et cetera.
9

Okay. I'll talk briefly about the revenue

10 items right now. When you get the budget you're going to
11 get your revenues from taxes, fees and assessments. On
12 the general fund side you have real property tax, charges
13 for current services, TAT, so on and so forth. Special
14 funds, you have things such as fuel and franchise tax, so
15 on and so forth.
16

One of the things that's different about the

17 budget versus the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is
18 that on interfund transfers you're going to see this large
19 figure which includes things such as debt service, fringe
20 benefits, overhead.
21

So, for example, if the highway fund needs to

22 pay some fringe benefits to the general funds, since the
23 general fund is paying everything, they'll show that as an
24 interfund transfer. So basically double count it in your
25 budget document. So it won't exactly match to your

1 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
2
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The other categories of revenues is bond and

3 lapsed bond proceeds. Bond proceeds are amounts that are
4 proposed to be borrowed through a bond issuance for CIP.
5 Lapsed bond proceeds are amounts that have already been
6 bonded that are no longer needed for the original CIP
7 project appropriated. So we are actually lapsing money to
8 use for another project, subject to Council approval.
9

Now, you shouldn't get confused here. If

10 this has to have already been bonded for it to lapse. If
11 it's not bonded, then obviously it can't be a lapsed bond
12 proceed.
13

I'm going to quickly get into probably my

14 favorite subject or this carry over savings. This is
15 another revenue item that you folks will see in the
16 budget.
17

Carry over savings are pretty complicated

18 subject here, and I would like to make one comment, that
19 as you guys go through your budget deliberations on carry
20 over savings, you need to realize that there's more -21 it's not as simple as looking at carry over savings.
22 There's two sides to the thing. You need to make sure you
23 have your operations in line, as well as your balance
24 sheet, which boils back to the carry over savings.
25

In any event, what carry over savings in the
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1 simple thing, I'll go over real quickly is that the
2 balance budget revenues equals appropriation. So in a
3 perfect world there is no such thing as carry over
4 savings, but because we either conservatively budget our
5 revenues or we're able to gain savings in our programs, we
6 have savings.
7

What happens is at this mid year period we

8 forecast what kind of savings we'll have at the end of the
9 year. So there's two kinds of carry over savings.
10 Because we don't know what we're going to have at the end
11 of the year, we're just taking a guesstimate at it. We
12 have the budgeted carry over savings, which you will see
13 in your budget book. Now, if we are in excess of that
14 budgeted amount, it turns into what we call surplus.
15

So I mean there's a real distinction. The

16 surplus is -- will not be in the budget book. The surplus
17 can not be used without Council action, as a result when
18 you have a surplus it's a very important line item to
19 have. It serves as your rainy day fund for unexpected
20 events or savings for subsequent years for upcoming
21 expenses, such as maybe some large cash CIP project, so on
22 and so forth.
23

The general rule of thumb is on this surplus

24 you want to have 5 percent or one month's payable in the
25 surplus account. So for the County of Maui it would be 10

1 to 18 million dollars.
2

136

Just to let you know, and I have it on your

3 sheets. In the budget proposal there will be definitions
4 and glossaries of terms in that. So you will need to look
5 through that document. I wasn't able to give you page
6 numbers because of, you know, the budget proposal for this
7 year is not -8

CHAIR HOKAMA: We're going to entertain

9 questions after the overview from Wes.
10

MR. LO: Okay. Now, quickly to get to the

11 quarterly report. Quarterly report basically in my mind is
12 the budget's implementation report, which shows the
13 revenues and expenses that were budgeted and your actual
14 performance in comparison to it. Again, because of the
15 structure of the budget the report is structured very
16 similarly, it looks very much the same. The revenues are
17 by type and appropriations by program.
18

Also in the quarterly report there will be

19 program measures are provided. I'll show you some
20 examples. Sorry this didn't come out so well, but in the
21 quarterly report you're going to have a program, in this
22 case it's a civil defense program, et cetera. It will
23 show your prior year encumberances, what you actually
24 budgeted, and the total expended per encumberance, and the
25 balance available.

1
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Now, there is a difference between current

2 expended and balance available. They don't necessarily
3 add up, because they take into consideration the actual
4 encumberances or, you know, agreements to pay on things.
5 So ultimately this is what you're going to see in your
6 quarterly report on the appropriations side.
7

Also in the budget book you'll see your

8 performance measures. I took the liberty of putting the
9 Purchasing Department in there. So what they do is they
10 show their measures the dollar volume direct payments of
11 credit cards and they show it and the actual to date, and
12 they show, you know, how you're doing compared to your
13 measures, et cetera. And on the bottom they do a summary
14 of your program on that. So that is in your quarterly
15 report. Again, the quarterly report really is pretty much
16 a budget implementation report.
17

Okay. The Comprehensive Annual Financial

18 Report, and I'm going through this fairly quickly, but
19 this is sort of the last leg of the financial reporting.
20 This is the annual report that's done by the County and
21 audited that provides us the true financial statements for
22 the County. It's not really -- I mean its use is pretty
23 much for investors, creditors and banks, et cetera. So it
24 has a lot different format than the budget, et cetera.
25 Basically people use it to determine the financial health

1 of the County.
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What I've done -- again, we don't have to go

2

3 over this slide, is over the next two pages what I've done
4 is given you some pages in the existing CAFR that you can
5 refer to that provides certain items, et cetera. So you
6 can see I have variety of the page numbers for you.
7

Okay. In looking at the Comprehensive Annual

8 Financial Report some of the key things that need to be
9 looked at is the operating statement or the profit and
10 loss statement, as they call it in the private sector, and
11 the balance sheet or the statement of assets and
12
13

liabilities.
Okay. The operating statement, again, this

14 is the income statement. What this does is provide a
15 measure of resources over time. In other words, your
16 revenues minus your operating expenses and non-operating
17 expenses equals they call it excess of revenues over
18 expenses, or again, in private sector you call it your net
19 profit, et cetera.
20

What's important about this is this is how

21 you can determine part of your financial health of the
22 company. Probably the key thing is you want to make sure
23 that the buzz word is structural balance. That the
24 County's in structural balance, and that recurring
25 revenues cover recurring expenses. The County's not meant
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1 to make money, but it's also not meant to lose money. You
2 know, we're supposed to just basically make sure we cover
3 our operations, any excess cash we can use in our
4 discretionary items, such as cash, CIP, grants, et cetera.
5

So this is a really important thing is we

6 need to make sure that we have -- we come close to
7 covering all our operating expenses first. If you don't
8 have that balance, obviously you're taking away from your
9 savings to fund operations.
10

Okay. The other important part of the

11 financial statement is the balance sheet. This is just a
12 picture in time. It's actually taken as of June 30th of
13 any year and it basically shows the liabilities of the
14 County versus the assets, et cetera. Don't expect this to
15 look like any financial statement you have seen in the
16 private sector. It's much more complicated in
17 governmental accounting. They have much different rules,
18 et cetera. For example, your assets are usually listed in
19 the general fixed asset account group which is different
20 than just the general fund.
21

So it's going to look a lot different to you,

22 and again, I'm not trying to get into too much detail on
23 this presentation, but just bear in mind it's not going to
24 look necessarily the same. In government accounting has a
25 lot different rules than the private sector, but I will go
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1 over some of the real key things you need to look at in
2 your balance sheet.
3

Probably the most important thing on the

4 balance sheet is the carry over savings level or your fund
5 balances. In the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
6 you'll see reserve for encumberances and unreserved. The
7 reserve for encumberance means that you haven't expended
8 it yet, but you have this balance there available.
9 Unreserved is the amount that really is going to flow
10 through into the next year, et cetera, and it's sort of
11 free for the next budget cycle, et cetera.
12

Now, if you take those two things that I

13 talked about, the structural balance and the savings, it's
14 really critical that you look at those two things together
15 and not alone. I always take the example is if you're
16 making money, you're making a million dollars a year after
17 all your revenues and all your expenses are, it's not that
18 important to have a large carry over savings balance level
19 because you're making money every year.
20

If you lose that structural balance and you

21 have a huge savings level, you better start getting
22 worried because that means every year you're going to be
23 eating away at the savings. I mean it's pretty basic, but
24 these are the things that you really got to look for in
25 the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
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1

Oh, shoot I'm sorry.

2

How do they tie together? Well, again, the

3 budget document is going to be -- is a forecast. It's
4 planning on how you're going to spend your money. And so
5 they're basically doing it to accomodate for
6 appropriations. They also estimate revenues and it's used
7 to control spending. So, basically the budget is your
8 planning document.
9

Okay. Quarterly report. It's just going to

10 be your budget implementation document. This is how
11 you're going to check to see that your budget is actually
12 on schedule and it's going to be measuring things by
13 appropriations and revenues, et cetera.
14

Okay. The annual financial report. Again,

15 it reports actual events that occurred during the last
16 year and it's not necessarily based on budgets. I tried
17 to scan in a page here, but I wasn't able to do it. There
18 is a part in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
19 that compares your actual to the budgetary basis so you
20 can check them on the thing.
21

Now, there's going to be a lot of

22 eliminations in there and consolidations. Again, if you
23 were to -- what happens in the budget is you simply start
24 adding programs, expenses together, and to come up with a
25 total, and you don't eliminate them when they're going
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1 from fund to fund. So the revenue figures are going to
2 look quite different from the annual financial report to
3 the budget. However, it's basically just an elimination
4 of consolidation of entries.
5

Let's see, I think I talked about that.

6

Another -- yeah, one thing I wanted to point

7 out, when you look at the budget and quarterly report, it
8 reports things to show your operating budget and your CIP
9 budget. Now, when you go back to the CAFR your CIP is not
10 necessarily expended in a one year period of time. It's
11 usually over some period of time. So it's not that easy
12 to track back your CIP in the annual financial report
13 because it's actually expenditures and not encumberances.
14

So I'm just trying to scan this real quickly.

15 Again, the CAFR consolidates and eliminates. It does
16 provide information by fund, reports actual expenditures,
17 so on and so forth.
18

This coming year we are trying to work with

19 our computer system to provide better reports that will
20 give us some interim financial statements by fund so that
21 we can have revenues and expenses to see how we're doing.
22 And we're also trying to work with the budget office to
23 see if we can breakdown by fund the operations
24 contemplated by the budget. So we're hopeful that we can
25 get some of these things implemented shortly.
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Just some of the problems again. The budget

1

2 contemplates future events. Operating CIP budgets at
3 different time frames. CAFR is a historical document and
4 budget is a forecasting document and the CAFR has a lot of
5 accounting adjustments.
Now I'm going to quickly get into the actual

6

7 results of this CAFR in just a real high level basis. The
8 most recently ended fiscal year, as you can see we had
9 revenues of 114 million. We actually ended up losing
10 approximately $91,000.00, which is a tremendous turn
11 around. In the prior years we had lost $4.9 million
12 dollars in the general fund and $7.9 million in the end of
13
14

1999.
This is a summary of the special funds. As

15 you can see the trend over there, et cetera.
16

For the fund balances some other good things

17 here is that you can see we went from 25.1 million. As
18 you recall we lost $4.9 million that year. As you can see
19 it sort of flows over, 1999 we lost $7.9 million. So the
20 key here is that if you don't -- if you have high fund
21 balance but you're not in structural balance, you're going
22 to start losing that savings and one day you're going to
23 cross the line and not be able to fund things, et cetera.
24

Because we're able to turn our operations

25 around, you know, we are now looking at our fund balances
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1 up at 16.2 million and you can see the total, et cetera.
2

I'm sorry, I went through that fairly

3 quickly. I tried to be a high level overview of sort of
4 those documents. Again, I know I went awfully fast and
5 we'd be happy to talk to you individually if any
6 questions, particularly for the newer members.
7

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much, Mr.

8 Lo, on that presentation of the CAFR overview.
9

Okay, members, the floor is open for questions

10 to Mr. Lo regarding the presentation.
11

And again, Mr. Lo, if you could just make sure

12 you touch base with Member Tavares' office when she does
13 return. Thank you.
14

Mr. Arakawa.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Yeah. Mr. Lo, why do

16 you separate out the information so that you don't have
17 the details in with the general overview? If you put the
18 two together and you can read it side by side then it's
19 easier to comprehend. Why are you separating out in the
20 budget reporting system?
21

MR. LO: I'm sorry, I'm not sure if I

22 understand your question.
23

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, you went

24 through the slides kind of fast, so I don't know exactly
25 which slide, but you're saying that the explanations to a
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1 lot of the verbage that's in your report, the details are
2 not any where in the report, they are separate documents.
3 Why do you separate out all of the details from the
4 report?
5

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, I hope I'm answering the

6 right question. The budget proposal does have a lot of
7 details, and so what all the members will be seeing in the
8 budget proposal will show sort of how they came up with the
9 program in showing the expense categories, salaries and
10 wages, operations and equipment, as you're familiar with
11 A, B and C accounts, are totaled to come up with the
12 actual figure.
13

The way the HRS was written is that they're

14 supposed to be at the highest level for program level so
15 that you just have one figure in your budget ordinance
16 which is the actual approved document.
17

I'm not sure if I'm answering that question

18 properly but -19

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: I sort of understand

20 what you're saying, I think. It's just that it seems if
21 you're going to be accountable for the -- what the
22 expenditures are, we need to be able to understand what
23 they are as compared, you know, the numbers as compared to
24 the verbage. So when we're saying we're going to be doing
25 something within the budget and now the actual
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1 expenditures are not contained in that budget, it's very
2 difficult to correlate, is there some way that you're
3 going to be numbering the system so that whatever the
4 general assumptions are we can now correlate that back to
5 the specific item in the other documentation?
6

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa, I

7 believe it's actually being done and we may be sort of
8 just misconnecting here.
9

In the budget proposal, and it's been this

10 way for several years now, you'll have each program and
11 there will be a synopsis of program measures, objectives,
12 mission, so on and so forth, and typically there is some
13 commentary if there's changes to that, et cetera. And
14 also in the budget proposal you'll see historical actual
15 expenditures by A, B and C accounts or salaries and
16 operations and equipment. And so you see the historical
17 differences, et cetera.
18

Then there will also be a line for any

19 expansion or changes in the program. So I think that it's
20 being provided for in the budget proposal. It's just that
21 the actual approved budget ordinance it's going to look a
22

little bit different. It's just a bound copy. It's

23 basically just stating what the actual amount of the
24 program is. It doesn't give details because it's actually
25 been approved already.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: That's why I'm kind

2 of curious. In the actual budget ordinance and being able
3 to do it, are you going to be correlating what the
4 specifics are to where they are in the budget ordinance?
5

For instance, if you're looking at sewer fund

6 and you're looking at saying well, this is what's going to
7 be in the sewer fund, what are the details that go behind
8 where it correlates in the budget to the sewer fund? Page
9 29 on such and such? Are we going to be able to
10 correlate, or are we going to be able to say in the budget
11 ordinance we're going to be expending so much dollars in
12 CIP for highways, and you'll be able to see this, the
13 details on page such and such for highways?
14

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa, we

15 weren't intending to do that. I think again the budget
16 ordinance is basically being drafted to be a program
17 budget where there's specific amounts and the details are
18 provided in the discussions and in the budget proposal.
19

Once the document is approved, the concept of

20 the program budget is that the, the director of the
21 various departments, so on and so forth, whatever it takes
22 within that appropriation to accommodate the measures, et
23 cetera, they have that. So they don't necessarily need to
24 spend within -- they have savings and salaries, and they
25 want to buy a piece of equipment, in theory they could
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1 decide to do that et cetera. I think what more you're
2 talking about is if we tie those two back together we'll
3 be pushing more back towards a line item budget.
4

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: No, what I'm -- all

5 I'm asking is are you going to have an indication when we
6 look at the budget where that information will correlate
7 from? I'm not trying to change the system. I'm just
8 asking, as a reference point, if we take something that is
9 stated in the budget document, like a sewer fund or a
10 highway fund, having some kind of way to correlate it back
11 to where the information is on the detailed budget?
12

You're doing a program and the way with the

13 program, as I understand it, what we're trying to do is
14 we're trying to say, okay, this is what we want to do.
15 This is the money we have available, and go ahead and
16 figure out how you're going to do it and you can adjust
17 your funding to it.
18

What I want to understand is when we say

19 that, are we going to be having a point where it's gonna
20 be referenced and we can say say, well, this is where the
21 actual expenditure was for this particular type of
22 program? Some way of tracking it.
23

MR. LO: Mr. Chair, Councilmember Arakawa, I

24 think the quarterly report does give it to you by program.
25 It does not go down into the detailed levels. Obviously we
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1 have that information available on our accounting system.
2 However, you would be seeing some fairly detailed financial
3 reports to get into the A, B and C accounts by program for
4 each program. And we can actually go down into further
5 detail, et cetera, but we do not -- you know, we were using
6 those as more of summary documents. So I think if there was
7 a specific information you needed, we'd be happy to provide
8
9

it to you.
I think in the budget document though, the

10 budget ordinance is not intended to refer back to the
11 budget proposal. So we're basically printing out the
12 actual summary of, you know, the program.
13

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So how do we

14 correlate the two?
15

MR. LO: The budget proposal is just a

16 proposal. Once you approve the proposal, we come up with
17 numbers and it becomes and it will be different -18 typically it is different than the budget proposal. It's
19 fairly straightforward and goes down by program, et
20 cetera. So I mean in your budget proposal you can look
21 back, et cetera.
22

We don't have -- if you're looking for us to

23 actually have in the budget ordinance a referral back to
24 the page of budget proposal, one of the issues there is
25 that the budget proposal was changed, you know, we would
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1 have to go and reprinting a budget proposal, you know, to
2 come up with the correlation back to the document.
3

Now, having said that, I think the way the

4 budget ordinance, budget proposal are structured, it's
5 fairly simple to look back, you know, saying something
6 like Department of Fire Control, and you can simply turn
7 to your budget proposal and there is actually a divider
8 that says Department of Fire Control, so on and so forth.
9 And the CIP budget is actually at the end, et cetera. And
10 we'll have more details in the 6-year CIP, so on and so
11
12

forth.
COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So basically what

13 you're telling me is there's no way to correlate the two.
14

MR. LO: No, I didn't say that.

15

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Or they're both

16 different documents?
17

MR. LO: No, I didn't say that. I basically

18 said that the budget proposal and the budget ordinance are
19 not necessarily the same exact documents. It's fairly
20 simple to turn back from the budget proposal by section
21 because it is structured the same way. We're not
22 intending to show the actual page number, et cetera, on
23 the budget proposal because we'll have it in binders,
24 which will say fire control, finance, housing and human
25 concerns, so on and so forth.
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Well, understand that

1

2 most of us are not accountants and that when we're looking
3 at the budget we have to try and find some way to
4 correlate the numbers that you put in a document and in
5 the budget proposal. We just need to understand, or I
6 need to understand how they correlate. And all I'm
7 asking is, is there a method that we can look at to
8 understand how they correlate? What does one have to do
9 with the other? How does the one relate to the other?
When you're doing the details and you say,

10

11 this is how we made all the expenses and expenditures, and
12 in the other document you're saying, we will be making
13 these types of expenditures, how do you correlate the two
14 in your system of doing this?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, Councilmember

15

16 Arakawa, okay, I'll try to take a shot at this one.
17

If you look on page 7-8 on the handout that

18 Wesley just passed out -- sorry, it's titled -- it's
19 example budget proposal with program resource. It looks
20

like this one.

21

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Example budget

22 proposal.
23

MS. YOSHIMURA: Sorry, I thought it was the

24 page number.
25

This portion comes out of the budget proposal
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1 and this will give you a breakdown of the salaries and
2 wages, operations and equipment and the total, okay for
3 the A, B, C accounts. Now this total then is picked up and
4 put in the budget ordinance. So that's how the two
5 documents will tie to each other.
6

So if you look at the budget ordinance it'll

7 just give you one total, okay? On the next page, on
8 page -- it gives the example of appropriations, and you
9 will see that today's purchasing program $239,728.00.
10 That's the amount that's being appropriated to that
11 particular program. Now, if you want a breakdown as far
12 as where this 239,000 came from, you need to refer back to
13 the budget proposal, which will give you a breakdown of
14 salaries, wages, operations and equipment. Now, if you
15 want further breakdown of how we derive these numbers, you
16 go back to the budget details.
17

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: And what I'm asking

18 is if I look at the one, the two pages that you're using,
19 if I look at the budget document and I see your example
20 proposal, 239,728, how do I know which page it correlates
21 to in the budget proposal that you have, the ordinance to
22 the proposal? How do I know which page to look at it and
23 to get the breakdown?
24

MS. YOSHIMURA: Okay, the budget proposal is

25 broken down into several sections and one section of the
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1 proposal is all the departments. Each department is
2 tabbed at each break. So you go -- you refer to the
3 budget proposal in the finance section, and you look for
4 department of purchasing or office of purchasing.
5

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: So there will be a

6 title to this page that says Finance Department so we
7 refer back to the Finance Department. We look at the
8 number 239,728, and some place in the Finance Department
9 we're going to see 239,728 as a total, and then we have to
10 figure out where the breakdown comes from, where each of
11 the numbers come from. Is that what you're saying?
12

MS. YOSHIMURA: Right. When you go back to

13 the budget proposal, in the budget ordinance there's a
14 title heading for the department. And after that it's
15 broken down into programs. So if you're looking
16 specifically at the purchasing program, we go to the
17 Finance Department because we know it's in the Finance
18 Department. Go back to the Finance Department, in there
19 you would see a separate pages.
20

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: What if I didn't know

21 it was the Finance Department?
22

MS. YOSHIMURA: Well, if you look at the

23 budget ordinance, it will have a department heading, and
24 under that department heading would list your different
25 programs.

1
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COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. So it is

2 listed by department.
3

MS. YOSHIMURA: It is listed by department,

4 by programs.
5

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay, that's all I

6 wanted to know is how you're going to do it. Because it
7 seems that you're separating it out and trying to do a
8 little bit different system, in your explanation you're
9 trying to do a little bit different system, and I'm just
10 trying to understand how to find the correlation. So
11 thank you.
12

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Arakawa.

13 Anyone else? Mr. Nishiki.
14

COUNCILMEMBER NISHIKI: No.

15

CHAIR HOKAMA: Members, it is the Chair's

16 recommendation to you that the Chair intends to defer this
17 item and then we will take it up at a later date,
18 especially when we get the auditors back for a review and
19 explanation of their analysis of the financial condition
20 of the County.
21

So if there's no objections, the Chair

22 is -- will defer item number 52.
23

NO OBJECTION: Councilmembers Arakawa,

24 Carroll, Johnson, Kane, Kawano, Molina, Nishiki, Chair
25 Hokama.
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1

CHAIR HOKAMA: So ordered.

2

ACTION: DEFER pending further discussion.

3

Announcements, members? If not, I know the

4 department has a lot of information to get together for
5 the next time we bring up this subject items. Seeing no
6 announcements -- yes, Mr. Arakawa.
7

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Not an announcement,

8 question. When do you foresee bringing back the
9
10

$700,000.00 appropriation?
CHAIR HOKAMA: The 700 dollar -- for the

11 service center?
12

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: For the service

13 center as a topic. Do you have a specific idea or after
14 the Administration has sufficient time to get the
15 funding -- or get the information for us?
16

CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe the next best

17 opportunity is in the budget review process as we discuss
18 it in its entirety.
19

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Good.

20

CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't believe to -- I think

21 we will have pertinent details as part of the overall
22 budget review. So I think that will be the next earliest
23 as we go through the -- after the budget is submitted by
24 the Mayor to the Council.
25

COUNCILMEMBER ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you.

1
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Any other questions? If not,

2 thank you very much, members. This meeting is adjourned.
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

ADJOURN: 11:58 a.m.
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